
a. e 

isi] WkAB SECURITIES & INVESTMENT LTD. 
Regd. Off.: Raja Bahadur Compound, Building No. 5, 2nd Floor, 43 Tamarind Lane, Fort, Mumbai 400 001. 

© 4046 3500 / 01 + Fax : 4046 3502 + E-mail : info @ikabsecurities.com 
CIN No. : L17100MH1991PLC059848 + Website : www.ikabsecurities.com 

  

Date: 09.09. 2020 

To 

The Deputy Manager (Listing - CRD) 
BSE Limited, PJ Tower 

Dalal Street, Fort 

Mumbai — 400 001 

Serip code: 514238 

Sub: 29" Annual Report of the Company FY 2019-20 

Sir/Madam, 

Pursuant to Reg. 34(1) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, attached herewith is the 29" Annual Report 
of the Company for the year 2019-20 along with Notice of Annual General Meeting. 

The aforesaid Annual Report is also uploaded on the Company’s website: www.ikabsecurities.com 

Kindly take the above information on record. 

Thank you. 

Yours truly, 

For Ikab Securities and Investment Limited 

Anil Kumar ri 

Directo



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ikab Securities & Investment Limited 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Twenty – ninth Annual Report and Accounts 
  2019 – 2020 
 

 
 



    Ikab Securities & Investment Limited 
     29th Annual Report 

 

 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 
 
Indra Kumar Bagri       Chairman        
Anil Kumar Bagri     Director 
Abhishek Bagri     Whole-time Director  
Swati Dujari                   Independent Director 
Prerit Kamal Damani  Independent Director  
 
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER:  
 
Devang Dani     
 
COMPANY SECRETARY & COMPLIANCE OFFICER:  
 
Ankita Phophaliya                     
 
AUDITORS: 
 
A. V. Arolkar & Co.,  
Chartered Accountants 
 
REGISTERED OFFICE: 
 
Raja Bahadur Compound, Bldg No.5     
2nd

Mumbai – 400 001 
 floor, 43 Tamarind Lane, Fort      

CIN: L17100MH1991PLC059848 
Phone: 022 – 4046 3500 
Website: www. ikabsecurities.com 
Email: info@ikabsecurities.com  
 
REGISTRAR & SHARE TRANSFER AGENT: 
 
Satellite Corporate Services Pvt. Ltd. 
Office No.106 & 107, Dattani Plaza 
East West Compound, Andheri Kurla Road 
Sakinaka, Mumbai- 400072 
Phone: 022 – 2852 0461 / 462 
 

mailto:info@ikabsecurities.com�


IKAB SECURITIES AND INVESTMENT LIMITED 
CIN No.: L17100MH1991PLC059848 

Regd. Office: Raja Bahadur Compound, Building No. 5, 43 Tamarind Lane, Mumbai – 400001 
Tel No.:022-4046 3500    Email: info@ikabsecurities.com    Website: www.ikabsecurities.com 
 

NOTICE 
 

Notice is hereby given that the 29thAnnual General Meeting of the Members of Ikab Securities 
and Investment Limited Company will be held on Wednesday, September 30th, 2020 at 5.00 
p.m. through Video Conferencing (‘VC’)/Other Audio-Visual Means(‘OAVM’) to transact the 
following business: 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
 
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of Accounts for the year 

ended as at March 31, 2020 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the 
Auditor’s thereon. 

 
2.To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Indra Kumar Bagri (DIN:00014384) who retires by 

rotation in terms of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible, offers 
himself for re-appointment. 

 
SPECIAL BUSINESS: 
 
3. To consider, and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification, the following Resolution 

as a Special Resolution: 
 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and any other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and the Companies (Appointment and 
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force) read with Schedule IV to the Act, Mr. 
PreritDamani (DIN: 00015362), Independent Director of the Company, whose initial term of 
office expires on 28th September, 2019 and who has submitted a declaration that he meets 
the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time 
and who is eligible for re-appointment for a second term under the provisions of the Act 
and the Rules framed thereunder, be and is hereby re-appointed as an Independent 
Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, to hold office for a second term of 
five years commencing from March 31, 2021 to March 30, 2026. 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THATDirector and/or the Company Secretary of the Company be and 
are hereby severally authorized to do all acts, deeds and things including filings and take 
steps as may be deemed necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution and 
matters incidental thereto”. 
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NOTES: 
 
1. In view of the  global outbreak of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’) 

has vide its General Circular No. 20/2020 dated 5th May 2020 read with General Circulars Nos. 
14/2020 dated 8th April 2020 and 17/2020 dated 13th

 

 April 2020 (collectively referred to as ‘MCA 
Circulars’) permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) through Video Conferencing 
(VC)/Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM), without the physical presence of the Members at a common 
venue. In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’), Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing 
Regulations’) and MCA Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being held through VC/OAVM.  

2. The relative Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
relevant details as required under Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and Secretarial Standard on General 
Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, of the person seeking 
appointment/ reappointment as Director under Item No. 2 and 3 respectively, are annexed hereto. 
 

3. PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THE ACT, A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE 
AGM IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT ONE OR MORE PROXIES TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF 
HIMSELF/HERSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. Since this AGM is 
being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through VC/OAVM, physical attendance of Members has 
been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be 
available for this AGM and hence the Proxy Form, Attendance Slip and Route Map for the AGM are 
not annexed to this Notice. 
 

4. Institutional Members are encouraged to attend and vote at this AGM through VC/OAVM. 
Institutional / Corporate Shareholders (i.e. other than individuals / HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to 
send a scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of its Board or governing body Resolution/Authorization etc., 
authorizing its representative to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM or vote through remote e-
voting. The said Resolution/Authorization shall be sent to the Scrutinizer by email through its 
registered email address to jupoojari@rediffmail.com with a copy marked to 
https://www.satellitecorporate.com and helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 
 

5. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled 
time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The 
facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available to atleast 1000 
members on first come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders 
holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 
Shareholder and Transfer Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the/AGM without 
restriction on account of first come first served basis.  The Members will be able to view the 
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proceedings on Central Depository Services Limited’s (‘CDSL’) e-voting website at 
www.cdslindia.com. 
 

6. Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the 
quorum under Section 103 of the Act.  

 
7. In compliance with the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular dated 12thMay 2020, Notice of the AGM along 

with the Annual Report 2019-20 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose 
email addresses are registered with the Company/Depositories. Members may note that the Notice 
and Annual Report 2019-20 will also be available on the Company’s website www.ikabsecurities.com 
and website of the Stock Exchange i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com. The Notice and Annual 
Report 2019-20 is also disseminated on the website of CDSL (agency for providing the Remote e-
Voting facility and e-voting system during the AGM) i.e. https://www.cdslindia.com. 

 
8. In case of joint holders, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names as 

per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote at the AGM. 
 

9.  Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their Shareholding, and register of contracts 
or arrangement in which directors are interested will be available for inspection by the Members 
through email. The members are requested to send an email to info@ikabsecurities.com for the 
same. 
 

10. Transfer of unpaid / unclaimed dividend etc. to the Investor Education and Protection Fund in terms 
of Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the company. 

 
11. Benefits of Dematerialization: 

 Shares held in dematerialized form have several advantages like immediate transfer of shares, faster 
settlement cycle, faster disbursement of non-cash corporate benefits like rights, etc., lower 
brokerage, ease in portfolio monitoring, etc. Besides, no stamp duty is payable on transfer of shares 
held in demat form and risks associated with physical certificates such as forged transfer, fake 
certificates, bad deliveries, loss of certificates in transit, get eliminated. Since there are several 
benefits arising from dematerialization, we sincerely urge you to dematerialize your shares at the 
earliest, if you are still holding the shares in physical form. 

       As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, securities of listed companies can be 
transferred only in dematerialized form with effect from, April 1, 2019, except in case of request 
received for transmission or transposition of securities. In view of this and to eliminate all risks 
associated with physical shares and for ease of portfolio management, members holding shares in 
physical form are requested to consider converting their holdings to dematerialized form. Members 
can contact the Company or Company’s Registrars and Share Transfer Agents, “Satellite Corporate 
Services Pvt. Ltd.” for assistance in this regard. 
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12. Members holding shares in dematerialized form are requested to intimate all changes pertaining to 

their bank details, mandates, nominations, power of attorney, change of address, change of name 
and email address, etc., to their Depository Participants only and not to Company’s Registrar and 
Transfer Agent. Changes intimated to the Depository Participant will then be automatically reflected 
in the Company’s records. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to intimate such 
changes to the Company’s Registrar & Share Transfer Agents, Satellite Corporate Services Pvt. Ltd. 

SEBI has mandated the submission of PAN by every participant in securities market. Members 
holding shares in electronic form are, therefore requested to submit the PAN to their Depository 
Participant with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in 
physical form can submit their PAN details to Satellite corporate services Pvt. Ltd. 
 
Members holding shares in physical form, in identical order of names, in more than one folio are 
requested to send to Satellite corporate services Pvt. Ltd., the details of such folios together with the 
share certificates and self-attested copies of PAN card of the holders for consolidating their holding 
in one folio. A consolidated share certificate will be issued to such Members after making requisite 
changes. 
 

13. As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act, the facility for making nomination is available for the 
Members in respect of the shares held by them. Members who have not yet registered their 
nomination are requested to register the same by submitting Form No. SH-13. The said form is 
enclosed herewith and is also available for download on the Company’s website 
www.ikabsecurities.com. Members are requested to submit the said form to Satellite Corporate 
Services Pvt. Ltd. at service@satellitecorporate.com in case the shares are held in physical form and 
Members holding shares in electronic form are requested to contact their respective Depository 
Participants for the same. 
 

14. At the 28th AGM held on 28/08/2019, the members approved appointment of M/s. A.V. Arolkar& 
Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN:100542W) as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office for 
a period of fiveconsecutiveyears till the conclusion of the 33rd AGM to be held in the year 2024. The 
requirement to place the matter relating to appointment of auditors for ratification by Members at 
every AGM has been done away by the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 with effect from May 7, 
2018. Accordingly, no resolution is being proposed for ratification of appointment of statutory 
auditors at the 29th

 
AGM. 

15. Registration of e-mail address permanently with Company/Depository Participant:  
To support ‘Green Initiative’, Members who have not yet registered their e-mail addresses are 
requested to register the same with their concerned Depository Participants, in respect of electronic 
holding and with Company’s Registrar & Share Transfer Agents, Satellite Corporate Services Pvt. Ltd., 
in respect of physical holding. Further, those Members who have already registered their e-mail 
addresses are requested to keep their e-mail addresses validated/updated with their Depository 
Participants/ Company’s RTA to enable servicing of notices/documents/Annual Reports and other 
communications electronically to their e-mail address in future.  
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16. In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Act, read with Rule 20 of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, Regulation 44 of the 
SEBI Listing Regulations, the Members are provided with the facility to cast their vote electronically, 
through the e-voting services provided by CDSL, on all the resolutions set forth in this Notice. The 
facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-voting system before the Meeting as well as 
remote e-voting during the AGM will be provided by CDSL. 
 

17. The remote e-voting period commences on Sunday, 27th September, 2020 (9.00 a.m. IST) and ends 
on Tuesday, 29th

 

 September, 2020 (5.00 p.m. IST). During this period, Members of the Company, 
holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on cutoff date i.e. Thursday, 
24.09.2020 may cast their vote electronically. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL 
for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the Member, he shall not be allowed 
to change it subsequently. The voting rights of Members (for voting through remote e-voting before 
the AGM and e-Voting during the AGM) shall be in proportion to their shares held in the paid up 
equity share capital of the Company as on cut-off date i.e. Thursday, 24.09.2020.. 

18. Members will be provided with the facility for voting through electronic voting system during the 
VC/OAVM at the AGM and Members participating at the AGM, who have not already cast their vote 
on the Resolutions through remote e-voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, will be 
eligible to exercise their right to vote during such proceedings of the AGM. The Members who have 
cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend/participate in the AGM through 
VC/OAVM, but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again. 

 
19. A person, whose name is recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of Beneficial 

Owners maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the 
facility of remote e-voting before the AGM as well as  remote e-voting during the AGM. Any person 
who is not a member as on the cut-off date should treat this Notice for information purpose only. 
Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company after 
sending of the Notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date, may obtain the User ID and 
Password by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
 

.  

20. The Chairman shall, at the AGM allow voting by use of remote e-voting system for all those 
Members who are present during the AGM through VC/OAVM but have not cast their votes by 
availing the remote e-voting facility before the AGM. The remote e-voting module during the AGM 
shall be disabled by CDSL for voting 15 minutes after the conclusion of the Meeting. 
 

21. Mr. J. U.  Poojari (FCS: 8102) or failing him, Ms.Jigyasa N. Ved (FCS: 6488) of Parikh & Associates, 
Practicing Company Secretaries, have been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote e-
voting before and during the AGM, in a fair and transparent manner.   
 

22. The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of remote e-voting at the AGM, first count 
the votes cast during the Meeting, thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting before 
the Meeting and make, not later than 48 hours of conclusion of the Meeting, a consolidated 
Scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person 
authorised by him in writing, who shall countersign the same.  
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23. The results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s website 

www.ikabsecurities.comand on the website of CDSL i.e. www.cdslindia.comimmediately after the 
results are declared and the same shall be communicated to BSE Limited, where the shares of the 
Company are listed.  

 
24. Subject to the receipt of requisite number of votes, the Resolutions forming part of the AGM Notice 

shall be deemed to be passed on the date of the AGM i.e. Wednesday, 30th

 
 September, 2020. 

A. INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH  VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER: 
 

1. Members will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM or through the 
CDSL e-voting system and they may access the same at https://www.evotingindia.com under the 
Shareholders/members login by using their remote e-voting credentials where the EVEN of the 
Company will be displayed. On clicking this link, the Members will be able to attend and 
participate in the proceedings of the AGM. 

 
Members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-voting or have forgotten the User ID 
and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-voting instructions mentioned in 
the notice to avoid last minute rush. Further, members can also use the OTP based login for 
logging into the e-voting system of CDSL. 

 
2. Members may join the Meeting through Laptops, Smartphones, Tablets and iPads for better 

experience. Further, Members will be required to use Internet with a good speed to avoid any 
disturbance during the meeting. Members will need the latest version of Chrome, Safari, Internet 
Explorer 11, MS Edge or Firefox. Please note that participants connecting from Mobile Devices or 
Tablets or through Laptops connecting via mobile hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due 
to fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use stable Wi-Fi or LAN 
connection to mitigate any glitches. 

 
3. Members are encouraged to submit their questions in advance with regard to the financial 

statements or any other matter to be placed at the 29thAGM from their registered e-mail address, 
mentioning their name, DP ID and Client ID number/folio number and mobile number to reach 
the Company’s e-mail address at info@ikabsecurities.com on or before 22nd

 

 September, 2020. 
Such questions by the Members shall be suitably replied to by the Company. 

4. Members who would like to express their views/ask questions as a speaker at the Meeting may 
pre-register themselves by sending their request from their registered email address mentioning 
their name, DP ID and Client ID/folio number, PAN, mobile number at info@ikabsecurities.comon 
or before 22nd

 

 September, 2020.Only those Members who have pre-registered themselves as a 
speaker will be allowed to express their views/ask questions during the AGM. The Company 
reserves the right to restrict the number of speakers depending on the availability of time for the 
AGM. 

5. Members who need assistance before or during the AGM, can contact on 022 28520461 
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B. INSTRUCTIONS FOR E-VOTING BEFORE/DURING THE AGM 

 
 INSTRUCTIONS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING BEFORE THE AGM ARE AS UNDER

 
: 

Step 1: Log-in to CDSL e-voting system at https://www.evotingindia.com 
  

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on CDSL e-voting system.  
 

1. Visit the e-voting website of CDSL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

Details on Step 1 are mentioned below: 
 
How to Log-in to CDSL e-voting website?  

 

https://www.evotingindia.com
 

either on a personal computer or on a mobile.  

2. Once the home page of e-voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available 
under ‘Shareholders’ section.  

 
3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password and a Verification 

Code as shown on the screen.  
 
4. Your User ID details are given below : 

 
Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL 
or CDSL) or Physical 

Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with NSDL 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID  
 
For example, if your DP ID is IN300*** and 
Client ID is 12****** then your User ID is 
IN300***12****** 
 

b) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with CDSL 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID  
 
For example, if your Beneficiary ID is 
12************** then your User ID is 
12************** 
 

c) For Members holding shares in Physical 
Form 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number 
registered with the Company 
 
For example, if EVEN is 123456 and folio 
number is 001*** then User ID is 
123456001*** 
 

 

5. Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 
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6. If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and 
voted on an earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used. 

 
7. If you are a first time user follow the steps given below: 

 
*Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant are requested to 
use the first two letters of their name and the sequence number in the PAN field. In case the sequence 
number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable number of 0’s before the number after the first two 
characters of the name. e.g.: if your name is Ramesh Kumar with sequence number 1 then enter 
RA00000001 in the PAN Field. 
 
 # Please enter any one of the details in order to login. In case both the details are not recorded with the 
depository or company please enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field. 
 

8. After entering appropriate details, click on “SUBMIT” tab. 
 

9. Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection 
screen. However, Members holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ 
menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new 
password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for 
voting for Resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that 
company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share 
your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password 
confidential. 

 
10. For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the 

Resolutions contained in this Notice. 

 For Members holding shares 

in Demat Form 

For Members holding shares 

in Physical Form 

PAN* Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department 
(Applicable for both Demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders) 

DOB# Enter the Date of Birth as recorded in your Demat account or in the company 
records for the said Demat account or folio in dd/mm/yyyy format. 

Dividend  

 

Bank Details# 

Enter the Dividend Bank Details as recorded in your Demat account or in the 
company records for the said Demat account or folio. 

Please enter the DOB or Dividend Bank Details in order to login. If the details are not 
recorded with the depository or company please enter the member id / folio 
number in the Dividend Bank details field. 
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11. Click on the Electronic Voting Sequence Number (EVSN) of the Company on which you choose 
to vote. 

 
12. On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option 

“YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you 
assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution. 

 
13. Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details. 

 
14. After selecting the Resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation 

box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, 
click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote. 

 
15. Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the Resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your 

vote. 
 

16. You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the 
Voting page. 

 
17. If Demat account holder has forgotten the changed password then enter the User ID and 

captcha code click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system. 
 

18. Members can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app “m-Voting”. The m-Voting app can 
be downloaded from respective Store. Please follow the instructions as prompted by the 
mobile app while Remote Voting on your mobile. 

 
 

 
INSTRUCTIONS FOR E-VOTING DURING THE AGM ARE AS UNDER: 

1. The procedure for e-voting during the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for 
remote e-voting, since the Meeting is being held through VC/OAVM. 
 

2. Only those Members/Shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility 
and have not cast their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting before the Meeting 
and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-voting system in 
the AGM. 

 
 

 

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL ADDRESSES ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH 
THE DEPOSITORIES FOR OBTAINING LOGIN CREDENTIALS FOR E-VOTING FOR THE 
RESOLUTIONS PROPOSED IN THIS NOTICE:  

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of 
shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested 
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to 
info@ikabsecurities.com/ service@satellitecorporate.com

 
 .  
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2. For Demat shareholders -, please provide Demat account details (CDSL-16 digit beneficiary 

ID or NSDL-16 digit DPID + CLID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account 
statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned 
copy of Aadhar Card) to info@ikabsecurities.com/ service@satellitecorporate.com

 
. 

3. The company/RTA shall co-ordinate with CDSL and provide the login credentials to the 
above mentioned shareholders.  

 
General Guidelines for shareholders  
 

1. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take 
utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled 
upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will 
need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” 
option available on www.evotingindia.com

 
 to reset the password. 

2. All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to 
Mr. NitinKunder (022-23058738) or Mr. MehboobLakhani (022-23058543) or Mr. RakeshDalvi 
(022-23058542), Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon 
Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or 
send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com  or call 1800225533. 

 
 

     By Order of the Board 
                    For Ikab Securities and Investment Limited   

       sd/- 
            Ankita Phophaliya 

      Company Secretary 
 
Regd.Office 
Raja Bahadur Compound 
Bldg No. 5, 2nd

 
 
 
 
 
  

 Floor, 
Tamarind Lane, Fort 
Mumbai – 400 001 
 
Date: 01.09.2020 
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE 

 
THE STATEMENT SETTING OUT MATERIAL FACTS PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 
2013 AND THE INFORMATION REQUIRED AS PER REGULATION 36(3) OF SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATION 
AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENT) REGULATION, 2015 AND SECRETARIAL STANDARD ON GENERAL 
MEETING (SS-2). 
 
Details of Director seeking re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting: 
 

Name of the Director Indra Kumar Bagri Prerit Damani 

DIN 00014384 05349218 
Date of Birth 27/05/1948 14/01/1975 
Date of first appointment on 
the Board 

14/07/1994 19/12/2005 

Qualifications Bachelor of Commerce B.Com, MBA (Finance) 

Expertise 
Over 46 years experience in 
Share Trading Investment & Fund 
Management 

Over  15 years of experience 
in Consultation and Fund 
Management 

Number of Meetings of the 
Board attended during the 
year 

04 04 

List of Directorship / 
Membership /Chairmanship of 
Committees of other Board 

Chairman of Oasis Securities 
Limited 

Transcendal Animation 
Pvt. Ltd. – Director 
SWinds Communication 
LLP – Partner 
Damani Consultants – 
Proprietor 

Shareholding in Ikab Securities 
& Investment Limited 

1091178 Equity shares -- 

Relationship between 
directors inter-se 

Mr. Indra Kumar Bagri is father of 
Mr. Anil Bagri and Abhishek 
Bagri, Directors of the Company 

N.A 

Terms and Conditions of 
appointment 

 N.A 5 years commencing from 
March 31, 2021 to March 30, 
2016. 

 
Item No. 3: 
 
Term of office of Mr. Prerit Damanii who was appointed as Independent Directors for a period of 5 years 
will expire on 31st

As per Section 149(10) of the Act, an Independent Director shall hold office for a term of up to five 
consecutive years on the Board of a Company, but shall be eligible for re-appointment on passing a 

 March, 2021.  
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special resolution by the Company and disclosure of such appointment in the Board’s Report, for 
another term of up to five consecutive years on the Board of the Company.   
 
Based on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and based on her skills, 
expertise and performance evaluation, the Board of Directors had approved and recommended the re-
appointment of Mr. Prerit Damani as Independent Director of the Company for a second term of five 
years, subject to the approval of the Members of the Company.  
 
The Company has received from Mr. Prerit Damani, the declarations in terms of Section 149 of the Act 
and the Rules made thereunder and SEBI LODR, 2015 stating that he is qualified to be re-appointed as 
Independent Director of the Company.   
 
In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Prerit Damani satisfies the conditions specified in the Act and the Rules 
made thereunder for re-appointment as Independent Director and that she is independent of the 
Management. 
 
Brief profile:  Mr. Prerit Damani, aged 45 years, is a graduate in commerce (B.Com) and has also done his 
MBA in Finance. He has an experience of about 15 years as a Consultant in Fund Management 
  
He attended 04 Board meetings. He is the member of Audit Committee & Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee.  
 
As on date of this Notice, Mr. Prerit Damani is not holding by himself or for any other person on a 
beneficial basis, any equity share in the Company. Except Mr. Prerit Damani, none of the Directors and 
the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company including her relative is in any way, concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise in the said resolution. It is therefore proposed to re-appoint him as 
Independent director of the company. The Board commends his re-appointment. 
 
The terms and conditions of his appointment shall be open for inspection by the Members through 
email. The members are requested to send an email to  info@ikabsecurities.com for the same. 
 

 
 

      By Order of the Board 
                    For Ikab Securities and Investment Limited   

       sd/- 
             Ankita Phophaliya 

       Company Secretary 
 
Regd.Office 
Raja Bahadur Compound 
Bldg No. 5, 2nd Floor, 
Tamarind Lane, 
Mumbai – 400 001 
 
Date: 01.09.2020 
 

mailto:info@ikabsecurities.com�


IKAB SECURITIES AND INVESTMENT LIMITED 
29TH ANNUAL REPORT 

                                     
BOARD’S REPORT 

[Pursuant to Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013] 
 
To, 
The Members 
IKAB SECURITIES AND INVESTMENT LIMITED 
 
The Directors present herewith the 29th

 

Annual Report together with the audited Financial Statements for 
the year ended on March 31, 2020. 

FINANCIAL RESULTS 
 
The financial results of the Company are summarized as under:  
                                                                                          (Rs. in lakhs)            (Rs. in lakhs) 
 Year ended 

31.03.2020 
Year ended 
31.03.2019 

Revenue from operations & other Income 157.62  124.79 
Profit / (Loss) before Depreciation and Taxation                    (134.49) 1.76 
Depreciation & Amortization                                     (1.00) (0.96) 
Profit / (Loss) before tax                                          (135.50)  0.80 
Less: Provision for Taxation 0.00 0.00 
i) Current Tax 0.00 1.71 
ii) Deferred tax 0.27 (0.38) 
iii) Prior period taxes 0.40 3.29 
Net Profit / (Loss) for the year                                 (148.76) (4.59) 

 
OPERATIONS / STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS 
 
The collapse in the values of stocks in the month of March 2020 (which prolonged into April) hit our 
portfolio very hard, resulting in the company reporting a heave loss. While our costs were in control, our 
bottom line took a huge hit. Given the recovery since then, we are confident that we will be able to come 
out of this huge dent in our Financial statement.. 
 
MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFTER THE END OF THE FINANCIAL 
YEAR 
 
There have been no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the Company 
which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial 
statements relate and the date of the report. 
 
In the last month of FY 2020, the COVID-19 pandemic developed rapidly into a global crisis, forcing 
governments to enforce lock-downs of all economic activity. The government announced lockdown from 
24th

 

March, 2020. For the Company, the focus immediately shifted to ensuring the health and well-being 
of all employee and the operations were conducted by following the 'Work from home model', to 
minimize the direct attack of COVID-19 on the employees. 

Except as stated above, the Company does not visualize any significant impact of ongoing Covid 
pandemic and its working or financial affairs. 
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DIVIDEND & TRANSFER TO RESERVES 
 
In order to conserve resources, the Directors do not recommend any dividend for the Financial Year 
2019-20. No amount of profit was transferred to any Reserves. 
 
DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Act and Articles of Association, Mr.Indra Kumar 
Bagri (DIN: 00014384), Director of the Company, retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting (AGM)  in accordance with Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and he is eligible for re-
appointment. 
 
In terms of Section 203 of the Act, the following are the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the 
Company: 
 
Mr.Abhishek Bagri (DIN:00015897)-Wholetime Director;  Mr.Devang Dani- Chief Financial Officer; 
Ms.Ankita Phophaliya-: Company Secretary.   
 
There is no change in the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel during the year under report. 
 
INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
 
Mr.Prerit Kamal Damani(DIN: 00015362) and Ms. Swati Dujari(DIN: 05349218),independent directors of 
the Company have submitted declarations that each of them meet the criteria of independence as provided 
in sub Section (6) of Section 149 of the Act there has been no change in the circumstances which may 
affect their status as an independent director during the year. In the opinion of the Board, the independent 
directors possess appropriate balance of skills, experience and knowledge as required. 
 
Term of office of aforesaid Mr. Prerit Damani as an Independent Director will expire on March 31, 2021. 
As per Section 149 of the Act read with rules made thereunder, his re-appointment for second term 
requires the prior approval of the shareholders of the company by way of passing of special resolution in 
general meeting. On the basis of the results of the performance evaluation of Mr. Prerit Damani and the 
declaration of independence received from him, the Board recommends his re-appointment as 
Independent Director for second term of five consecutive years at the ensuing AGM. 
 
NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS &COMMITTEESTHEREOF 
05 meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the year 2019-20. 
 
The Committees of the Board have been constituted/ reconstituted in accordance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013.Currently, the Board has the following Committees: 
 

(1) Audit Committee comprising of three Directors namely Mr. Prerit Damani (Independent 
Director),Ms. Swati Dujari (Independent Director) &Mr. Anil Bagri, Non-Executive Director 

 
(2) Nomination & Remuneration Committee comprising of three Directors namely Mr. Prerit Damani 

(Independent Director), Ms. Swati Dujari (Independent Director) & Mr. Indra Kumar Bagri, Non-
Executive Director. 
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(3) Stakeholder Relationship Committee three Directors namely Mr. Prerit Damani (Independent 
Director), Ms. Swati Dujari (Independent Director) & Mr. Indra Kumar Bagri, Non-Executive 
Director. 

 
(4) Finance Committee comprising of three Directors namely Mr. Prerit Damani (Independent Director), 

Mr. Indra Kumar Bagri, Non-Executive Director & Mr. Anil Bagri, Non-Executive Director  
 

(5) Share Transfer Committee comprising of three Directors namely Mr. Prerit Damani (Independent 
Director), Mr. Anil Bagri, Non-Executive Director and Mr. Indra Kumar Bagri, Non-Executive 
Director 

 
The details of meetings held during the year and the attendance of directors for these meetings annexed 
hereto forms part of the Annual Report. 

 
Independent Director Committee comprising of two Independent Directors namely Mr. Prerit Damani and 
Ms. Swati Dujari. 
 
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY  
 
Provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 with regard to Corporate Social Responsibility are 
not applicable to the company. 
 

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY / VIGIL MECHANISM 

The Company is committed to adhere to the highest standards of ethical, moral and legal conduct of 
business operations. To maintain these standards, the Company encourages its employees who have 
concerns about suspected misconduct to come forward and express these concerns without fear of 
punishment or unfair treatment. A Vigil (Whistle Blower) Mechanism formulated by the Company 
provides a channel to the employees and Directors to report to the management concerns about unethical 
behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Codes of Conduct or Policy. The mechanism 
provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of employees and Directors to avail of the 
mechanism and also provide for direct access to the Managing Director/Chairman of the Audit Committee 
in exceptional cases. The revised policy is placed on the website of the Company which includes 
provisions enabling employees to report instances of leak of unpublished price sensitive information as 
per Reg. 9A, Sub Reg. 6 of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;weblink: 

POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION AND CRITERIA FOR 
INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

https://www.ikabsecurities.com/coc.php 

 
The Remuneration Policy for directors and senior management and the Criteria for selection of candidates 
for appointment as directors, independent directors and senior management are placed on the website of 
the Company weblink:www.ikabsecurities.com/policies.php  
 
There has been no change in the policies since the last fiscal year. 
 
The Board of Directors affirm that the remuneration paid to the directors is as per the terms laid out in the 
Remuneration Policy of the Company. 
 
 

http://www.ikabsecurities.com/policies.php�
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 
 
Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors, to the best of their 
knowledge and ability, confirm that: 
 

(i) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been 
followed and there are no material departures; 

 
(ii) they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments 

and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of 
affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit / loss of the Company 
for that period; 

  
 (iii) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records 

in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and 
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

  
 (iv) they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 
  
 (v) they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and such 

internal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively; 
  
 (vi) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 

laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 
 
ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS 
 
The Company has proper and adequate system of internal financial controls commensurate with its nature 
and size of business and meets the following objectives: 

• Providing assurance regarding the effectiveness and efficiency of operations 
• Efficient use and safeguarding of resources 
• Compliance with policies, procedures and applicable laws and regulations and 
• Transactions being accurately reported and recorded timely 

 
The Company has budgetary control system to monitor expenditures and operations against budgets on an 
ongoing basis. 
 
The internal auditor also regularly reviews the adequacy of internal financial control system.  
 
DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES/ JOINT VENTURES/ ASSOCIATES 
 
The Company does not have any subsidiaries/ joint ventures/ associates.  
 
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 
 
As provided under sub Section (3) of Section 92 and 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 
12(1) of the Companies (Management & Administration) Rules, the extract of annual return is enclosed in 
Form MGT-9, which forms part of the Boards’ Report as Annexure I. The same is available on weblink: 
http://www.ikabsecurities.com/annual_reports.php 
 
 

http://www.ikabsecurities.com/annual_reports.php�
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AUDITORS & THEIR REPORT 
 
Members of the Company at their 28th AGM held on 28/08/2019 appointed M/s. A.V. Arolkar & Co., 
Chartered Accountants, Mumbai, (FRN No. 100542W) for a period of five consecutive  years to hold 
office till the conclusion of 33rd

 

 AGM to be held in the year 2024.  They have submitted a certificate 
confirming that their appointment is in accordance with Section 139 read with Section 141 of the 
Act. 

The auditors’ report does not contain any qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks in their 
report. 
 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT AND THEIR REPORT 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 
2013, M/s. Parikh& Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries were appointed as the Secretarial 
Auditor for auditing the secretarial records of the Company for the financial year 2019-20 and their 
Report is attached hereto as Annexure II. 
 
The Report of the Secretarial Auditor does not contain any observations or adverse remarks. 
 
DISCLOSURE 
 
The company has devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 
secretarial standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and that such systems are 
adequate and operating effectively.  
 
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTGO 
 
In view of nature of business of the Company, particulars regarding conservation of energy and 
technology absorption are not given. However, the Company has taken various measures to conserve 
energy at all levels. 
There was no foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the year under report. 
 
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 
 
Pursuant to Section 197 of the Act read with rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 the particulars of employees are annexed as Annexure III. 
 
DEPOSITS FROM PUBLIC 
 
The Company has not accepted any deposits from public during the year. 
 
SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORY/ JUDICIAL 
AUTHORITY 
 
No significant or material orders were passed by any regulator or court that would impact the going 
concern status of the Company and its future operations. 
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PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS 
 
The Company has not given any loans or guarantees or made investments pursuant to the provisions of 
the Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year under report. 
 
RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company has framed a risk management policy and is responsible for 
reviewing the risk management plan and ensuring its effectiveness. The audit committee has additional 
oversight in the area of financial risks and controls. Major risks identified by the businesses and functions 
are systematically addressed through mitigating actions on a continuing basis. 
 
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
Particulars of transactions with related parties pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) of the Act read with rule 8(2) 
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014: Not Applicable 
 
EVALUATION OF BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS 
 
An annual evaluation of the Board’s own performance, Board committees and individual directors was 
carried out pursuant to the provisions of the Act in the following manner: 

Sr. No. Performance 
evaluation of 

Performance evaluation 
performed by Criteria 

1.  Each Individual 
directors 

Nomination and 
Remuneration 

Committee 

Attendance, Contribution to the Board and 
committee meetings like preparedness on 
the issues to be discussed, meaningful and 
constructive contribution and guidance 
provided, key performance aspects in case 
of executive directors etc. 

2.  Independent 
directors 

Entire Board of Directors 
excluding the director 
who is being evaluated 

Attendance, Contribution to the Board and 
committee meetings like preparedness on 
the issues to be discussed, meaningful and 
constructive contribution, and guidance 
provided etc. 

3.  Board, and its 
committees All directors 

Board composition and structure; 
effectiveness of Board processes, 
information and functioning, fulfilment of 
key responsibilities, performance of specific 
duties and obligations, timely flow of 
information etc. 
The assessment of committees based on the 
terms of reference of the committees and 
effectiveness of the meetings. 
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DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE  
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 
The company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of The Sexual 
Harassment of women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and rules made 
thereunder. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy. 
 
The Company has not received any complaint of sexual harassment during the financial year 2018-19. 
 
LISTING FEES 
The Company has paid the listing fees to BSE Limited for the year 2020-21.. 
 
INSIDER TRADING REGULATIONS AND CODE OF DISCLOSURE 
The Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information and 
Code of Internal Procedures and Conduct for Regulating, Monitoring and Reporting of Trading by 
Insiders in accordance with the requirements of the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation, 
2015 is available on our website www.ikabsecurities.com/policies.php 
 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
In terms of the provisions of Regulation 34 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Management’s discussion and analysis 
is set out in this Annual Report. As Annexed in Annexure IV. 
 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 
As per SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 Corporate 
Governance is not mandatory to the Company. 
 
MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS: 

Maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under Section 148(1) of the Act 
is not applicable to the company. 
 
COMPLIANCES OF SECRETARIAL STANADARD 
The company has devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 
secretarial standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and that such systems 
are adequate and operating effectively.  
 
APPRECIATION 
The Board of Directors is thankful to its Bankers and Institutions for the support and financial assistance 
from time to time. 
Your Directors are pleased to place on record their sincere appreciation to all the employees of the 
Company whose untiring efforts have made achieving its goal possible. Your Directors wish to thank the 
Central and State Governments, customers, suppliers, business associates, shareholders for their 
continued support and for the faith reposed in your Company. 

For and on behalf of the Board  
           
          sd/- 
          Indra Kumar Bagri 
Place: Mumbai        Chairman 
Date: 01.09.2020        DIN: 00014384  

http://www.ikabsecurities.com/policies.php�
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    ANNEXURE I 
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

As on the financial year ended 31st

Form MGT-9 pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 

 March, 2020 

 
I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:  
 
i. CIN Number of the Company:  L17100MH1991PLC059848 
ii. Registration Date:  17th January, 1991 
iii. Name of the Company:  Ikab Securities and Investment Limited 
iv. Category/ Sub-category of the Company:  Public Company / Limited by Shares 
v. Address of Registered office and contact 

details:  
Raja Bahadur Compound, Building No. 5    
2nd

Mumbai – 400 023 
 floor, 43 Tamarind Lane, Fort   

Tel: 022 - 4046 3500    
Email: info@ikabsecurities.com 
Website: www.ikabsecurities.com             

vi. Whether listed company:  Yes 
vii. Name, Address and contact details of 

Registrar and Transfer Agent:  
M/s. Satellite Corporate Services Pvt. Ltd.  
Office No.106 & 107, Dattani Plaza 
East West Compound, Andheri Kurla Road 
Sakinaka, Mumbai- 400072 
Email: service@satellitecorporate.com 
Website: www.satellitecorporate.com 
Tel: +91 22 2852 0461 / 2852 0462 
Fax: +91 22 2851 1809 

  
 
II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY 
 
All the business activities contributing to 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be 
stated:- 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Name and Description of  
main products

NIC Code of the 
 / services Product

% to total turnover of 
the company  / service 

1.   NBFC 9971190      100% 

 
III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES: NIL 
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)  
 
(i) Category-wise Share Holding:  
 

Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the 
beginning of the year [As on 01-4-

2019] 

No. of Shares held at the 
end of the year[As on 31-03-2020] 

% Change 

during 
  Demat Physical Total % of 

Total 
Shares 

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares 

the year     

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 

Promoters                   

      Indian 

               

  

         Individuals / Hindu 
Undivided Family 1894718 0 1894718 55.46 1894718 0 1894718 55.46 

0.00 

Cental Government  0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 
0.00 

 State Governments(s) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

         Bodies Corporate 150000 0 150000 4.39 150000 0 150000 4.39 0.00 
         Financial Institutions / 
Banks 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

         Any other (specify) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

      Sub-Total (A) (1) 2044718 0 2044718 59.85 2044718 0 2044718 59.85 0.00 
      Foreign   0 0 0.00   0 0 0.00 0.00 

  Non-Resident Individuals 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

         Other  Individuals 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

         Bodies Corporate 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 
 Banks / FI 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

         Any Other (specify) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

      Sub-Total (A) (2) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

   Total Shareholding of 
Promoter (A) = (A)(1)+(A)(2) 2044718 0 2044718 59.85 2044718 0 2044718 59.85 

0.00 
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   Public Shareholding       0.00       0.00   
      Institutions     0 0.00     0 0.00 0.00 
         Mutual Funds  0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 
         Financial Institutions / 
Banks 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

Cental Government  0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 
State Governments(s) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

         Venture Capital Funds 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

         Insurance Companies 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

         Foreign Institutional 
Investors 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 

0.00 

         Foreign Venture Capital 
Funds 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 

0.00 

         Any Other (Specify) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

      Sub-Total (B) (1) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 
      Non-Institutions     0 0.00     0 0.00   

         Bodies Corporate 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 
i) Indian 4128 8200 12328 0.36 479 8200 8679 0.25 -0.11 
ii) Overseas 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 
         Individuals                   

            Individual Shareholders 
holding nominal Share Capital 
upto Rs.1 Lakh 

89294 155300 244594 7.16 91918 154200 246118 7.20 

0.04 

            Individual Shareholders 
holding nominal Share Capital 
in excess of Rs.1 Lakh 

1113660 0 1113660 32.60 1113660 0 1113660 32.60 

0.00 

Any Other (Specify) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 
Clearing Member 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

Overseas Corporate Bodies 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 
NRI-Repatriable 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 
NRI-Non Repatriable 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 
HUF 1000 100 1100 0.03 3225 0 3225 0.09 0.06 
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EMPLOYEES 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

Directors & their relatives 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 
      Sub-total (B) (2) 1208082 163600 1371682 40.15 1209282 162400 1371682 40.15 0.00 

   Total Public Shareholding 
(B) = (B)(1)+(B)(2) 1208082 163600 1371682 40.15 1209282 162400 1371682 40.15 

0.00 
TOTAL (A)+(B) 3252800 163600 3416400 100.00 3254000 162400 3416400 100.00 0.00 

Shares held by Custodians 
Custodian for GDRs & ADRs 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 

0.00 
GRAND TOTAL 
(A)+(B)+(C) 3252800 163600 3416400 100.00 3254000 162400 3416400 100.00 0.00 

 
(ii)  Shareholding of Promoters: 

Sr. No Shareholder's Name Shareholding at the beginning of the 
year 01.04.2019 

Shareholding at the end of the year      
31.03.2020 

% change 
in share 
holding 
during the 
year 

No. of 
Shares 

% of total 
Shares of 
the 
company 

%of Shares 
Pledged / 
encumbered 
to total shares 

No. of 
Shares 

% of total 
Shares of 
the 
company 

%of Shares 
Pledged / 
encumbered 
to total 
shares 

1 Indra Kumar Bagri 1091178 31.94 0 1091178 31.94 0 0.00 

2 Anil Kumar Bagri  
748340 21.69 0  

748340 21.90 0 0.00 

3 Abhishek Bagri 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
4 Amit Kumar Bagri 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
5 Archana Bagri 35200 1.03 0 35200 1.03 0 0.00 
6 Savitri Devi Jajoo 20000 0.59 0 20000 0.59 0 0.00 
7 Linkers Enclave Pvt. Ltd 25000 0.73 0 25000 0.73 0 0.00 
8 Oasis Securities Limited 100000 2.93 0 100000 2.93 0 0.00 
9 Tuscon Towers Pvt. Ltd 25000 0.73 0 25000 0.73 0 0.00 

 

Total 2044718 
 
 

59.85 
 
 

0.00 
 
 

2044718 
 
 

59.85 
 
 

0.00 
 
 

0 
 

 
(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding:  N.A 

 
 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of 
Promoters 

Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year 

Date Reason Increase/ Decrease in 
Shareholding 

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year 31.03.2019 

No. OfShares at 
Thebeginning 
(01.04.2018) 

% of 
totalshares 
of 
theCompan
y 

No of 
Shares 

% of Total 
Shares of the 

Company 

No. of 
Shares 

% of total 
Shares of the 

Company 

 
NIL 

NIL NIL  
 

NIL NIL NIL NIL 
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(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of 
GDRs and ADRs): 
 

  
Serial 

no 
 

  
Name of the Share Holder  

Date 

  
Reason 

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 

01.04.2019 

Increase/ Decrease in 
Shareholding Cumulative Shareholding 

during the year 

No. of 
Shares 

% of total 
Shares of 
the 
company 

No. of 
Shares 

% of total 
Shares of 
the 
company 

No. of 
Shares 

% of total 
Shares of the 
company 

1 AtulGoel   156250 4.53 - - 156250 4.53 
2 AmitGoel   156250 4.53 - - 156250 4.53 
3 AnujGoel   156250 4.53 - - 156250 4.53 
4 ShwetaGoel   152573 4.42 - - 152573 4.42 
5 Namratakhandewal   145637 4.22 - - 145637 4.22 
6 Balesh Kumar Bagree   129900 3.77 - - 129900 3.77 
7 NareshKhandelwal   94800 2.75 - - 94800 2.75 
8 VineetWadhwa   62000 1.80 - - 62000 1.80 
9 MadhushreeBagree   60000 1.74 - - 60000 1.74 
10 ShbhaVenuDhoot   8750 0.25 - - 8750 0.25 

 
(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 

 
 
 
 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of Director/ 
KMP 

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 

Date Reason Increase/ Decrease in 
Shareholding 

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year  

31.03.2020 
No. of Shares 
at the 
beginning 
(01.04.2019) 

% of total 
shares of 
the 
Company 

No. of 
Shares 

% of Total 
Shares of the 
Company 

No. of 
Shares 

% of total 
Shares of the 

Company 

1. Indra Kumar Bagri 
(Director) 1091178 31.94 - - - - 1091178 31.94 

2. Anil Kumar Bagri 
(Director) 748340 21.90 

 
        -    

748340 21.90 

3. Abhishek Bagri 
(Whole-time 
Director) 

- - - -   - - 

4. PreritDamani 
(Independent 
Director) 

- - - - - - 
- - 

5. Swati Dujari 
(Independent 
Director) 

- - - - - - 
- - 

6.  AnkitaPhophaliya 
(Company 
Secretary& 
Compliance Officer) 

- - - - - - 
- - 

7. DevangDani 
(Chief Financial 
Officer) 

- - - - - - 
- - 
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V. INDEBTEDNESS  
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment-  
          (Rs. in Lakhs) 

  Secured Loans 
excluding deposits 

Unsecured 
Loans 
 

Deposits Total 
Indebtedness 

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial 
 

     
i. Principal Amount 0 0 0 0 
ii. Interest due but not paid 0 0 0 0 
iii.     Interest accrued but not   due 0 0 0 0 

    Total (i+ii+iii) 0 0 0 0 
Change in Indebtedness during the financial 
year 

    

Addition 0     123679.90 0 
 

    123679.90 

Reduction 0 123679.90 0 

 

123679.90 

 
Net Change 0 0 0 0 
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year 0 0 0 0 

i. Principal Amount 0 0 0 0 
ii. Interest due but not paid 0 0 0 0 

 
 
VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
 
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager   (Rs) 
 

No. 
 

Abhishek Bagri 
Whole-Time 
Director 

1.  Gross Salary 7,80,000 
 a) Basic Salary - 
 b) Perquisites - 
 c) Incentives - 
 d) Profits in lieu of salary under Section 17(3) of Income Tax Act, 1961 - 

2. Stock Option - 
3. Sweat Equity - 
4. Commission - 
5. Others, Profession Tax  

 Total (A) 7,80,000 
 Ceiling as per the Act 60,00,000/- p.a. 
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B. Remuneration to other directors: 
 

Sr. 
no. 

Particulars of Remuneration 
 
 

Name of Directors Total 
Amount  
(Rs.) 

1 Independent Directors 
• Fee for attending board  

committee meetings 
• Commission 
• Others, Profession Tax 

Prerit Damani 
 

15,000 
-- 

2,500 

 Swati Dujari 
 

12,000 
-- 

 2,500 
 

 
 

 
 
      27,000 
 
       5,000 

 Total (1) 17,500 14,500      32,000 
2  Other Non-Executive Directors  

 Fee for attending board / 
 committee meetings 

• Commission 
• Others, Profession Tax 

Indra Kumar 
Bagri                 

18000 

Anil Bagri 
 

18,000 

 
 
     36,000 

 Total (2) 18,000 18,000 36,000 
 Total (B)=(1+2) 35,250 32,250 68,000 
 Total Managerial Remuneration 

(A+B) 
  8,48,000 

 Overall Ceiling as per the Act Within the ceiling limits of Section 197 of the 
Act. 
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C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than ED/MD/ Manager/WTD: 
(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel Total Amount 

  DevangDani 
CFO 

AnkitaPhophaliya 
(Company Secretary) 

1. Gross Salary 
(a) Salary as per provisions 
contained in section17(1) of the 
Income –tax Act 1961 
 
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 
Income-tax Act 1961 
 
(c) Profits in lieu of salary u/s 
17(3) Income-tax Act 1961  

 
3,93,067 

 
 
 

-- 
 
 

-- 

 
1,20,000 

-- 

-- 
 

 
5,13,067 

 
 
 

-- 
 
 

-- 

2. Stock Option -- -- -- 
3. Sweat Equity -- -- -- 
4. Commission -- -- -- 
5. Others-Profession Tax   -- -- 
 Total (A)   3,93,067 1,20,000 5,13,067 

 
 
VII. Penalties/ Punishment/ Compounding of Offences- NONE 
 

For and on behalf of the Board  
 
          sd/- 
          Indra Kumar Bagri 
Place: Mumbai        Chairman 
          DIN: 00014384 
Date: 01.09.2020 
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FORM No. MR-3 
 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST 

 
MARCH, 2019 

(Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014) 

 
To, 
The Members 
IKAB SECURITIES AND INVESTMENT LIMITED 
 
We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions 
and the adherence to good corporate practices by Ikab Securities and Investment Limited, 
having CIN: L17100MH1991PLC059848 (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was 
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns 
filed and other records maintained by the company, the information provided by the company, 
its officers, agents and authorised representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, the 
explanations and clarifications given to us and the representations made by the Management 
and considering the relaxations granted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and the Securities 
And Exchange Board of India warranted due to spread of the Covid-19 pandemic, we hereby 
report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year 
ended on 31st 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
made available to us and maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31

March, 2020 generally complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder 
and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to 
the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

st

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

 
March, 2020 according to the provisions of: 

(ii) The Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made 
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and 
External Commercial Borrowings; 
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(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) 

(a)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015; 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2009 as amended from time to time;  (Not applicable to the 
Company during the audit period) 

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) 
Regulations, 2014; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period) 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 
Regulations, 2008; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period) 

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;(Not 
applicable to the Company during the audit period) 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 
2009; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period) and 

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 
2018; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period) 

(vi) Other laws specifically applicable to the Company namely 

1.     The RBI Act 1934 

2.  Non-Banking Financial (Non - Deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies   Prudential 
Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2007. 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect to 
board and general meetings. 

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited read with the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
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During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, 
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, standards etc. mentioned above. 

We further report that: 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. No changes in the composition 
of the Board of Directors took place during the period under review. 

Adequate notice was given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed 
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance for meetings other than those held at 
shorter notice, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the 
meeting.  

Decisions at the Board Meetings were taken unanimously. 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company 
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance 
with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

We further report that during the audit period no events occurred which had bearing on the 
Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines etc. 

For Parikh & Associates 
                      Company Secretaries 
Place: Mumbai      sd/- 
Date: 01.09.2020     Mohammad Pillikandlu (Partner) 

                     FCS No:  10619   CP No: 14603 
                                                                                    UDIN: F010619B000643823 
 
This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and Forms an 
integral part of this report. 
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Annexure’ A’ 

To,  

The Members  

Ikab Securities and Investment Limited  

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the 
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based 
on our audit. 

2. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain 
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The 
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial 
records. We believe that the process and practices, we followed provide a reasonable 
basis for our opinion. 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books 
of Accounts of the Company. 

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the 
Compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was 
limited to the verification of procedure on test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted 
the affairs of the Company. 

 
 
For Parikh & Associates 

                      Company Secretaries 
Place: Mumbai      sd/- 
Date: 01.09.2020     Mohammad Pillikandlu (Partner) 

     FCS No:  10619   CP No: 14603 
                                                                                    UDIN: F010619B000643823 
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ANNEXURE III 
 

Information pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act 2013[Read with Rule 5(1) of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014] 

 

 

(i)The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the 
Company for the financial year: 

 
I. None of the Non-executive Directors were paid any remuneration during the year except sitting fees. 

Ratio to median remuneration Executive Directors 

Mr.Abhishek Bagri, Whole-Time Director 2.10 

 

 

(ii) The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, chief executive officer, chief financial 
officer, company secretary in the financial year: 

Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial 
Officer and Company Secretary 

% increase/decrease in 
remuneration in the financial year 

Directors 30 

.Devang Dani, CFO 11.53 

Ankita Phophaliya, CS                             0.00 

 

 
(iii) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: N.A. 

 
(iv) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of company: 4(including Director) 

 During the year there has been no exceptional increase in 

(v) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial 
personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial 
remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for 
increase in the managerial remuneration: 

 
managerial remuneration. 

(vi) 
     The Company affirms remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company. 

Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company: 

 
(vii) During the year, there were no employees who were in receipt of remuneration in the aggregate of 

rupees One crore two lakhs for the year or rupees Eight lakhs fifty thousand per month, if employed 
for part of the year. 
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Information as per Rule 5(2) of the (Companies Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Persons) 2014 and forming part of the Directors’ Report for the year ended 31st

 
 March 2020 

A. Top Ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn during the year including those employed 
throughout the year and in receipt of remuneration Aggregating not less than Rs. 1,02,00,000/- for the 
year ended 31st

 
  March 2020 – Not Applicable 

B. Employed for part of the year and in receipt of remuneration aggregating not less than Rs. 850,000/- 
per month: - NIL 
 

 
For and on behalf of the Board  

          sd/- 
          Indra Kumar Bagri 
Place: Mumbai        Chairman 
          DIN: 00014384 
Date: 01.09.2020 
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ANNEXURE IV 

 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

As Per Schedule V Of SEBI LODR 
[Regulation 34(3) and 53(f)] 

 
a.Business Overview & Trends 
 
There are decades when nothing out of the ordinary happens, and then there is suddenly a year like 
this when all hell breaks loose and we are confronted with an unimaginable situation which forces us 
to rethink everything – the way we interact, the way we live, the way we do business. It is said that 
whatever doesn’t kill you only makes you stronger. The situation created by Covid-19 has the 
promise to make the entire world significantly stronger in the decades to come. We will take some 
time, possibly a few years, to absorb it fully, but we are confident that it will only be good for us in 
the decades to come. 
 
b.Nature Of Industry 
 
Earlier this year the Reserve Bank of India granted a moratorium on loans and interest due to banks and 
NBFCs till 31st

 

 August 2020. While this came as a welcome relief for businesses reeling under lack of 
revenue due to the lockdown, it did create cash flow problems, as well those of moral hazard, for the 
lenders. We will only know over the course of the next six months how many of the borrowers end up 
paying their dues in full, but this will also make lenders a lot more cautious about lending in the days 
ahead. 

c.Business Performance 
 
Our bottom line was badly affected this year due to an investment we made in the month of March. 
Unfortunately it coincided with a complete collapse of the markets. With the stock markets staging a huge 
comeback since the lows of April, we hope to recoup a large part of the losses this year itself. 
 
d.Risks& Concerns 
 
Fortunately for us all our borrowers kept their accounts in good stead even during the moratorium period of 
the Reserve Bank of India. The volatility in the stock market will continue to affect our performance, either 
towards the positive or negative, and while we hope to profit from it, it will also remain a source of risk. 
 
e.Internal Control Systems And Their Adequacy 
 
We believe that our internal control systems are adequate for the scale of our operations. 
 
f.Limitationsof Financial Statements 
 
Our greatest strength is our people, a strength that no number in the Balance Sheet can cover. With the 
abilities of our people, we believe that we will continue to do well over the longer period of time.  
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g.Future Outlook 
 
The handling of the Covid-19 situation by the Government of India has been nothing but exemplary, and 
we continue to maintain and believe that the future of this country remains extremely bright, particularly 
under the dynamic leadership we see at the Centre. The changes that we will see over the next few years 
will have a profound impact on the running of our country and prepare it for great success over the next 50 
years. 
 
h.Segment Wise Performance 
 
Your Company has only single segment i.e. Investment. Revenue and expenses have been identified on 
the basis of accounting standard and guidance note issued by Institute of Charted Accountant of India. 
 
i.Human Resources And Industrial Relations 
 
We continue to maintain cordial relations with all our employees and have not had any problems with them. 
 
j.Cautionary Statement 
 
Financial markets implicitly mean great volatility, and while we expect to do well in the long run, it is 
important to note that in the short term we may see significant upheavals. 
 
k.Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational performance. 

 
The Company’s cost reduction initiatives have yielded results as the Company was profitable despite the 
significant rise in input costs. Efforts to further improve efficiency continue at all levels and across all 
departments.  
 
l.Material developments in Human Resources / Industrial Relations front, including number of 
people employed. 
 
The total number of employees remained unchanged at the end of the prior financial year: 
 
 

         For and on behalf of the Board  
          sd/- 
          Indra Kumar Bagri 
Place: Mumbai        Chairman 
Date: 01.09.2020       DIN: 00014384 
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DISCLOSURE OF DETAILS OF MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEE 
MEETINGS HELD AND ATTENDED BY DIRECTORS DURING 2019-20 AS REQUIRED 
UNDER SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 

5 Board Meetings held i.eon12.04.2019, 20.05.2019,  11.07.2019,  22.10.2019 & 05.02.2020 
BOARD MEETING 

 
NAME OF DIRECTORS NO. OF MEETINGS ATTENDED 
Mr.Indra Kumar Bagri 4 
Mr. Anil Kumar Bagri 5 
Mr.Abhishek Bagri 5 
Ms.SwatiDujari 2 
Mr.PreritDamani 4 
 

04 Audit Committee Meetings held i.eon 20.05.2019, 11.07.2019, 22.10.2019 & 05.02.2020 
AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING 

 
NAME OF DIRECTORS NO. OF MEETINGS ATTENDED 
Mr. Prerit Damani 4 
Ms. Swati Dujari 4 
Mr. Anil Kumar Bagri 4 
 

One Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meeting held on 20.05.2020 
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE MEETING 

 
NAME OF DIRECTORS NO. OF MEETINGS ATTENDED 
Mr. Indra Kumar Bagri 1 
Ms. Swati Dujari 1 
Mr. Prerit Damani 1 
 

 
FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 

01 Finance Committee Meetings held i.eon26.02.2020 
NAME OF DIRECTORS NO. OF MEETINGS ATTENDED 
Mr. Indra Kumar Bagri 1 
Mr. Anil Bagri 1 
Mr. Prerit Damani 1 
 

One Stakeholders Relationship Committee held on 10.03.2020 
STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 

 
NAME OF DIRECTORS NO. OF MEETINGS ATTENDED 
Mr. Indra Kumar Bagri 1 
Mr. Prerit Damani 1 
Ms. Swati Dujari 1 
 
SHARE TRANSFER COMMITTEE:  N.A 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

To, 

The Members of Ikab Securities & Investment Limited 

Report on the audit of the Ind AS financial statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Ikab Securities & Investment Limited (“the 

Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2020, and the Statement of Profit and Loss, 

including Other Comprehensive Income, the statement of cash flows and the Statement for Changes in Equity for 

the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 

policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Ind 

AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) in the manner so 

required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of 

the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, its Loss, including other comprehensive income, its cash 

flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing specified under section 143(10) of the 

Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the auditor’s 

responsibilities for the audit of the Ind AS financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the 

Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the 

provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 

with these requirements and the code of ethics. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

opinion. 

https://taxguru.in/company-law/presidents-assent-companies-act-2013.html


Key audit matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 

Ind AS financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 

Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 

opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided 

in that context. 

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. We 

have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Ind AS financial 

statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the 

performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 

standalone Ind AS financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to 

address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying Ind AS financial 

statements. 

 

Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matters 

a. Transition to Ind AS accounting framework 

The Company has adopted Ind AS from 1 April 2019 with 

an effective date of 1 April 2018 for such transition. For 

periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 

2019, the Company had prepared and presented its 

financial statements in accordance with the erstwhile 

generally accepted accounting principles in India (Indian 

GAAP). To give effect of the transition to Ind AS, these 

financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020, 

together with the comparative financial information for 

the previous year ended 31 March 2019 and the transition 

date Balance Sheet as at 1 April 2018 have been prepared 

under Ind AS.  

The transition has involved significant change in the 

Company’s policies and processes for financial reporting, 

including generation of supportable information and 

applying estimates to inter alia determine impact of Ind 

AS on accounting and disclosure requirements prescribed 

 Read the Ind AS impact assessment performed 

by the 

 Management and the resultant changes made to 

the accounting policies considering the 

requirements of the new framework. 

 Evaluated the exemptions and exceptions 

allowed by Ind AS and applied by the 

Management in applying the first-time adoption 

principles of Ind AS 101 in respect of fair 

valuation of assets and liabilities existing as at 

transition date.  

 Tested the accounting adjustments posted as at 

the transition date and in respect of the previous 

year to convert the financial information 

reported under erstwhile Indian GAAP to Ind 

AS. 

 Tested the disclosures prescribed under Ind AS. 



under extant Reserve Bank of India (RBI) directions. In 

view of the complexity involved, Ind AS transition and 

the preparation of financial statements subsequent to the 

transition date have been areas of key focus in our audit. 

 

b. Impairment of financial assets (expected credit loss) 

Ind AS 109 requires the Company to recognise 

impairment loss allowance towards its financial assets 

(designated at amortised cost and fair value through profit 

& loss) using the expected credit loss (ECL) approach. 

Such ECL allowance is required to be measured 

considering the guiding principles of Ind AS 109 

including: 

 unbiased, probability weighted outcome under various 

scenarios; 

 time value of money; 

 impact arising from forward looking macro-economic 

factors and; 

 availability of reasonable and supportable information 

without undue costs. 

Applying these principles involves significant estimation 

in various aspects, such as: 

 grouping of borrowers based on homogeneity by 

using appropriate statistical techniques; 

 staging of loans and estimation of behavioral life; 

 determining macro-economic factors impacting credit 

quality of receivables; 

 estimation of losses for loan products with no/minimal 

historical defaults. 

Considering the significance of such allowance to the 

overall financial statements and the degree of estimation 

involved in computation of expected credit losses, this 

area is considered as a key audit matter. 

 We read and assessed the Company’s 

accounting policies for impairment of financial 

assets and their compliance with Ind AS 109. 

 We tested the criteria for staging of loans based 

on their past-due status to check compliance 

with requirement of Ind AS 109. Tested a 

sample of performing (stage 1) loans to assess 

whether any loss indicators were present 

requiring them to be classified under stage 2 or 

3 and vice versa. 

 We evaluated the reasonableness of the 

Management estimates by understanding the 

process of ECL estimation and tested the 

controls around data extraction and validation. 

 Tested the ECL model, including assumptions 

and underlying computation. 

 Assessed the floor/minimum rates of 

provisioning applied by the Company for loan 

products with inadequate historical defaults. 

 Audited disclosures included in the Ind AS 

financial statements in respect of expected 

credit losses. 



c. Fair Valuation of Investments 

The Company’s investments (other than investment in 

Subsidiary and Associates) are measured at fair value at 

each reporting date and these fair value measurements 

significantly impact the Company’s results. Within the 

Company’s investment portfolio, the valuation of certain 

assets such as unquoted equity and bonds requires 

significant judgement as a result of quoted prices being 

unavailable and limited liquidity in these markets. 

We have assessed the Company’s process to 

compute the fair value of various investments. For 

quoted instruments we have independently obtained 

market quotations and recalculated the fair 

valuations. For the unquoted instruments, we have 

obtained an understanding of the various valuation 

methods used by management and analysed the 

reasonableness of the principal assumptions made 

for estimating the fair values and various other data 

used while arriving at the fair value measurement. 

Information other than the Ind AS financial statements and auditors’ report thereon 

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other 

information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, 

Business Responsibility Report but does not include the Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report 

thereon. 

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 

form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 

and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone Ind AS 

financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially 

misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 

information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Management’s responsibility for the Ind AS financial statements 

The Company’s board of directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to 

the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, 

financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in 

accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting standards specified 

under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.  



This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of 

the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 

irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that 

are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, 

that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to 

the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 

concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or 

has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Ind AS financial statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a whole are 

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 

accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud 

or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 

skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud 

or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 

resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 

intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible 

for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and 

the operating effectiveness of such controls 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 

related disclosures made by management. 



 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on 

the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 

significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 

uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Ind 

AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based 

on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may 

cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 

manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 

identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 

reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.  

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of 

most significance in the audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key 

audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure 

about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated 

in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 

interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of 

India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure “I”, a 

statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 

belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears 

from our examination of those books; 



(c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss including the statement of other comprehensive income, the 

cash flow statement and statement of changes in equity dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of 

account; 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the accounting standards specified under 

section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015; 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020 taken on record by 

the board of directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director 

in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company with 

reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 

Report in ‘Annexure II’ to this report; and 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 

the explanations given to us; 

a. The Company has no pending litigations that impact on its financial position; 

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any 

material foreseeable losses; and 

c. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the Company. 

 

For A. V. AROLKAR & CO. 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No: 100542 W 

 

 

Abhay Vasant Arolkar 

Partner 

Membership No.: 32453 

UDIN : 20032453AAAAAU8661 

Place : Mumbai 

Date  : 31/07/2020 

sd/-

https://taxguru.in/company-law/companies-act-2013-companies-accounts-rules-2014.html


Annexure I to the Independent Auditors’ Report 

The Annexure referred to in our Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company on the standalone 

Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020, we report that: 

I. According to the information and explanations given to us, 

 

a. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 

details and situation of fixed assets. 

 

b. The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by which fixed 

assets are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. In accordance with this 

programme, certain fixed assets were verified during the year and no material discrepancies were 

noticed on such verification. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable 

having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. 

 

c. We were informed that the company doesn’t own any immovable property. Hence this clause is 

not applicable.    

 

II.   The Company is a financing and investing company, accordingly does not hold any physical inventories. 

Thus, paragraph 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

III.    According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, 

secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other parties covered in the register maintained under 

section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii)(a) and (b) of the 

Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon. 

 

IV.   In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 

granted any loans and made any investments with the companies or parties covered under Sections 185 

and 186 of the Act. 

 

V.   The Company has not accepted deposits during the year and does not have any unclaimed deposits as at 

March 31, 2020 and therefore, the provisions of the clause 3 (v) of the Order are not applicable to the 

Company. 

 

 



VI.   To the best our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Central 

Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act, in 

respect of the services rendered by the Company. 

 

VII. According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues: 

 

a. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 

the records of the Company, is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues amounts deducted/ 

accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including income tax, 

provident fund, employees state insurance fund and other material statutory dues have been 

regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities.  

 

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in 

respect of income tax, provident fund, employees state insurance fund and other material statutory 

dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2020 for a period of more than six months from the date they 

became payable. 

  

b. According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the records of the 

company examined by us, there are no disputed dues of Income tax, provident fund, employees 

state insurance fund and other material statutory dues payable by the company as on 31
st
 March, 

2020. 

VIII.   According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation given to 

us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to financial institutions, banks 

Government and dues to debenture holders.  

 

IX.    In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the monies raised by way 

of Debentures and term loans have been applied on an overall basis for the purposes for which they were 

obtained. The Company has not raised any monies by way of initial public offer and any other further 

public offer (including debt instruments). 

 

X.   According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud on or by the Company has 

been noticed or reported during the course of our audit. 

 

XI.   In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has paid / 

provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions 

of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act 



 

XII.   The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not 

applicable. 

 

XIII.   In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company is in 

compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, for all transactions with the related 

parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone Ind AS financial 

statements as required by the applicable Indian accounting standards. 

 

XIV.   According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any private 

placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year 

 

XV.   In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the 

Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or persons connected to its 

Directors and hence provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable. 

 

XVI.   According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is registered, as required, under 

Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 

 

For A. V. AROLKAR & CO. 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No: 100542 W 

 

 

Abhay Vasant Arolkar 

Partner 

Membership No.: 32453 

UDIN : 20032453AAAAAU8661 

Place : Mumbai 

Date  : 31/07/2020 

sd/-



Annexure II to the Independent Auditors’ Report 

Annexure II referred to in paragraph 2(f) under the heading ‘Report on other legal and regulatory 

requirements’ of our report of even date 

Report on Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 

2013 (the ‘Act’) 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting Ikab Securities & Investment Ltd. (the 

‘Company’) as of 31 March 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of 

the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management’s responsibility for internal financial controls 

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on 

the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 

Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, 

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for 

ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the 

safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 

accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditor’s responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting 

with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 

accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 

‘Guidance Note’) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent 

applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial 

reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements was established and maintained and if 

such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 

controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements and their operating 

effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding 

s/



of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial 

statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 

effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 

judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 

to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 

opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS 

financial statements. 

Meaning of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Standalone Ind AS 

Financial Statements 

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial 

statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and 

the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these standalone Ind 

AS financial statements includes those policies and procedures that: 

i. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions 

and dispositions of the assets of the Company; 

ii. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 

statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures 

of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of Management and Directors of 

the Company; and 

iii. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or 

disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 



Inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone 

Ind AS Financial Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these 

standalone Ind AS financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of 

controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 

evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS 

financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 

reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements may become inadequate because of 

changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls over financial 

reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial controls over 

financial reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements were operating effectively as at 

31 March 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 

Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

 

For A. V. AROLKAR & CO. 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No: 100542 W 

 

 

Abhay Vasant Arolkar 

Partner 

Membership No.: 32453 

UDIN : 20032453AAAAAU8661 

Place : Mumbai 

Date  : 31/07/2020 

 

sd/-



As at As at As at
31st March 2020 31st March 2019 1st April 2018

ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3 1,64,25,482                 17,55,821                    6,65,253                     
Bank balance other than Cash and cash equivalents 4 1,06,30,513                 1,05,93,701                 88,00,000                   
Recievables 5

Trade recievable -                                 -                                  -                                
Other recievable 15,36,257                    98,375                          8,86,644                     

Loans 6 1,65,23,280                 -                                  42,51,831                   
Investments 7 3,82,28,768                 7,90,41,255                 8,04,18,139               
Other Financial Assets 8 24,08,222                    69,39,896                    34,37,264                   
Total financial assets (A) 8,57,52,522              9,84,29,047               9,84,59,131             

Non-financial assets
Deferred tax assets (net) 9 2,43,492                       2,70,075                       4,02,440                     
Intangible assets 10 1,16,930                       51,056                          53,191                         
Property, plant and equipment 11 4,17,989                       4,50,059                       5,43,495                     
Other non-financial assets 12 1,23,433                       1,46,285                       39,01,340                   
Total non-financial assets (B) 9,01,843                     9,17,475                     49,00,466                 

Total Assets (A+B) 8,66,54,365              9,93,46,522               10,33,59,596          

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Payables
       Trade payables -                                 -                                  -                                
       Other payables 13 2,14,733                       2,75,126                       1,77,213                     
Total financial liabilities (A) 2,14,733                     2,75,126                     1,77,213                    

Non-financial liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 14 -                                 -                                  -                                
Provisions 14 18,81,670                    1,71,130                       37,14,386                   
Other non-financial liabilities 15 5,82,297                       48,565                          62,861                         
Total non-financial liabilities (B) 24,63,967                  2,19,695                     37,77,247                 

Equity 
Equity Share Capital 16 3,41,64,000                 3,41,64,000                 3,41,64,000               
Other equity 17 4,98,11,665                 6,46,87,701                 6,52,41,136               
Total equity (C) 8,39,75,665              9,88,51,701               9,94,05,136             

Total equity and liabilities (A+B+C) 8,66,54,365              9,93,46,522               10,33,59,596          

Corporate Information and Significant Accounting 1 - 2
Notes to the financial statements 3 - 35

The notes refered to above form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For M/s A. V. Arolkar & Co.;
Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 100542W)

sd/- sd/-
 Indra Kumar Bagri Abhishek Bagri

Chairman Whole Time Director
sd/-
Abhay Vasant Arolkar
Partner sd/- sd/-
Membership No: 032453 Devang Dani Ankita Phophaliya

Chief financial officer Company Secretary
Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : 31/07/2020 Date : 31/07/2020

Particulars

Ikab Securities & Investments Limited
Balance sheet as at 31st March 2020

Notes

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

(Currency: Indian Rupees)



(Currency: Indian Rupees)
For year ended For year ended

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019

Revenue from operations
Interest Income 18 17,74,164                           8,35,125                           
Net gain on fair value changes 19 1,32,17,235                        1,06,11,479                      
Total revenue from operations 1,49,91,399                      1,14,46,604                   
Other income 20 7,70,742                              10,32,072                         
Total Income 1,57,62,141                      1,24,78,676                   

Expenses
Finance costs 21 2,05,29,859                        50,89,504                         
Impairment on financial instruments 22 41,30,820                           10,78,615                         
Employee benefits expenses 23 36,55,479                           33,51,234                         
Depreciation and amortisation 24 1,00,421                              95,571                               
Other expenses 25 20,27,510                           28,90,022                         

Total expenses 3,04,44,089                      1,25,04,946                   

Profit/(Loss) before tax (1,46,81,948)                    (26,270)                            

Tax expense
- Current tax -                                        1,71,130                           
- Tax expense relating to prior years 39,918                                 3,29,441                           
- Deferred tax 26,583                                 38,289                               
Total tax expense 66,501                                5,38,860                          

Profit/(Loss) for the year (1,47,48,449)                    (5,65,130)                        

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss :
- Remeasurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans (1,27,587)                            2,10,287                           
- Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss -                                        (52,572)                             
- Deferred Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss -                                        (51,948)                             

Total other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year (1,27,587)                          1,05,767                          

Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year (1,48,76,036)                    (4,59,363)                        

Earnings per equity share 
- Basic and diluted 26 (4.32)                                   (0.17)                                 

Corporate Information and Significant Accounting Policies 1 - 2
Notes to the financial statements 3 - 35

The notes refered to above form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For M/s A. V. Arolkar & Co.; For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 100542W)

sd/- sd/-
Indra Kumar Bagri Abhishek Bagri
Chairman Whole Time Director

sd/-
Abhay Vasant Arolkar
Partner sd/- sd/-
Membership No: 032453 Devang Dani Ankita Phophaliya

Chief financial officer Company Secretary
Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : 31/07/2020 Date : 31/07/2020

Ikab Securities & Investments Limited
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31st March 2020

Notes



Ikab Securities & Investments Limited
Cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March 2020
(Currency: Indian Rupees)

For year ended For year ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019

(1,46,81,948)             (26,270)                         
Adjustments for:

Depreciation Expense                         1,00,421                               95,571 
Finance Costs                   2,05,29,859                         50,89,504 
Interest Income                    (24,75,627)                      (18,61,005)
Impairment on financial instruments                       41,30,820                         10,78,615 
Net (gain)/loss on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss                 (1,32,17,235)                   (1,06,11,479)

(56,13,710)                                     (62,35,064)
Cash inflow from interest 24,75,627                    18,61,005                      
Cash outflow towards finance cost (2,05,29,859)               (50,89,504)                    

Cash generated from operation before working capital changes (2,36,67,942)             (94,63,563)                   

Changes in operating assets and liabilities
(Increase)/ decrease in other receivables                    (14,37,882)                           7,88,269 
(Increase)/ decrease in loans                 (2,06,54,100)                         31,73,216 
(Increase)/ decrease in other Financial Assets                       45,31,673                      (35,02,632)
(Increase)/ decrease in other non financial Assets                                1,782                                     291 
Increase in other payables                          (60,393)                               97,913 
Increase in provisions                       15,82,953                      (34,37,485)
Increase in other non financial liabilities                         5,33,732                            (14,296)

Cash generated from operations               (3,91,70,176)                 (1,23,58,287)
Tax Expenses / Deferred Tax                          (18,848)                         32,54,193 

Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities              (A)               (3,91,89,024)                     (91,04,094)

Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment                       (1,34,225)                                         -   
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment                                       -                                           -   
Purchase of investments measured at FVTPL              (73,08,38,737)                (88,32,30,627)
Proceeds from sale of investments measured at FVTPL                 78,48,68,459                   89,52,18,990 
Interest received on investments measured at FVTPL                                       -                                           -   

Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities              (B)                  5,38,95,497                    1,19,88,363 

Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of shares                                       -                                           -   
Proceeds from Other Equity                                       -                                           -   
Proceeds from Borrowings           12,36,79,89,694               3,20,70,00,174 
Repayment of borrowings        (12,36,79,89,694)             (3,20,70,00,174)

Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities              (C)                                       -                                           -   

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents     (A+B+C)                  1,47,06,473                       28,84,269 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year                   1,23,49,522                         94,65,253 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year                  2,70,55,995                    1,23,49,522 

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents                  1,47,06,473                       28,84,269 

Corporate Information and Significant Accounting Policies 1 - 2
Notes to the financial statements 3 - 35

The notes refered to above form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For M/s A. V. Arolkar & Co.;
Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 100542W)

sd/- sd/-
Indra Kumar Bagri Abhishek Bagri
Chairman Whole Time Director

sd/-
Abhay Vasant Arolkar
Partner sd/- sd/-
Membership No: 032453 Devang Dani Ankita Phophaliya

Chief financial officer Company Secretary
Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : 31/07/2020 Date : 31/07/2020

The Previous GAAP figures have been reclassifed to confirm to IndAS presentation requirement for the purpose of this note.

The above Cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in the IndAS 7 - "Statement of Cash Flows" as notified

under Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2015.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Particulars

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit/ (loss) before tax



Ikab Securities & Investments Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st March 2020
(Currency: Indian Rupees)

A. Equity Share Capital

Particulars Amount
As at 1st April 2018 3,41,64,000         
Changes in Equity Share Capital during 2018-19 -                            
As at 31st March 2019 3,41,64,000         
Changes in Equity Share Capital during 2019-20 -                            
As at 31st March 2020 3,41,64,000         

B. Other Equity

Opening balance as at 1 Apr 2018 4,45,58,619           1,68,000               2,05,14,517                           -                -                 6,52,41,136         
Remeasurements of Employment Benefit Obligations -                            -                          -                                            -                 -                 -                            
Transfer to retained earnings - Loss 2018-19 (4,59,363)                -                          -                                            -                 -                 (4,59,363)               
Any other change -                            -                          -                                            -                 -                 -                            
Closing balance as at 31 Mar 2019 4,40,99,256         1,68,000             2,05,14,517                         -                -                 6,47,81,773         
Transfer to retained earnings - Loss 2019-20 (1,48,76,036)          -                          -                                            -                 -                 (1,48,76,036)         
Any other change -                            -                          -                                            -                            
Closing balance as at 31 Mar 2020 2,92,23,220         1,68,000             2,05,14,517                         -                -                 4,99,05,737         

The notes refered to above form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For M/s A. V. Arolkar & Co.; For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 100542W)

sd/- sd/-
Indra Kumar Bagri Abhishek Bagri
Chairman Whole Time Director

sd/-
Abhay Vasant Arolkar
Partner sd/- sd/-
Membership No: 032453 Devang Dani Ankita Phophaliya

Chief financial officer Company Secretary
Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : 31/07/2020 Date : 31/07/2020

 Items of other 

comprehensive income 
 Total Other 

Equity 

 Reserves & Surplus 

 Retained 

Earnings 
 Particulars 

 FVTPL  FVTOCI 
 Capital reserve 

 Statutory Reserve under 

Sec 45IC of RBI Act, 1934 



Ikab Securities & Investments Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of the Standalone Financial Statement as at 31st March 2020
(Currency: Indian Rupees)

1 Corporate Information

2

2.1 Basis of Preparation and Presentation

2.2

2.3

2.4

These financial statements are the Company’s first Ind AS financial statements and are covered by Ind AS 101, First-time adoption of

Indian Accounting Standards. An explanation of how the transition to Ind AS has affected the Company’s equity, financial position,
financial performance and its cash flows is provided in Note no. 33

Oasis Securities Ltd is a non deposit taking NBFC, engaged in NBFI business. The company is also engaged in Mutual Fund Distribution,

IPO activities, Life insurance, providing loans and other financial services.

Oasis Securities Ltd (‘the Company’) is a public limited company incorporated under the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956 on 6th
November, 1986. The Company is registered with Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, Maharashtra vide registration no.
L51900MH1986PLC041499 having its registered office address at Raja Bahadur Compound buidling No. 5 2nd Floor 43 Tamarind Lane 

 (i)  Determination of the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.

(ii) Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies, key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude  
       of an outflow of resources.

(iii) Recognition of deferred tax assets.
(iv) Fair value of financial instruments.
(v) Applicable discount rate.
(vi) Impairment on financial assets
(vii) Provision for tax expenses
(viii) Provision and other contigent liabilities

Basis of Measurement

Key Accounting Estimates and Judgments

Basis of Preparation and Presentation and Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in India requires the management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities
on the date of the financial statements. Management believes that the estimates made in the preparation of the financial statements are
prudent and reasonable. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as notified by

Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 to be read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. The Company’s
Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2020 comprises of the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of 

For all periods up to and including the year ended 31st March 2019, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with
Indian Generally Accepted Accounting Practices (IGAAP), including Accounting Standards (ASs) specified under Section 133 of the

Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 7 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended, to the extent applicable.

Accounting Policies have been consistently applied except where a newly-issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision
to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

Company’s financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is also its functional currency.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on ________.

The Ind AS Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using historical cost convention and on accrual method
of accounting, except for certain financial assets and liabilities, including financial instruments which have been measured at fair value 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions in the application of

accounting policies that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these

estimates. The Management believes that the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable.
Continuous evaluation is done on the estimation and judgments based on historical experience and other factors, including

expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively.
Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies, as well as estimates and assumptions that have the most 



2.5

2.6

2.7

a)

b)

c)

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation methods are reviewed by the management at each reporting date and 

Property, plant and equipment are derecognised either on disposal or when no economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.

The gain or loss arising from disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with

the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year of occurrence.

Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the Company and revenues can reliably be
measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or

receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates, taxes or 

Property, Plant & Equipment

Property, Plant & Equipment's are stated at cost net of recoverable taxes, trade discounts and rebates and include amounts added on
revaluation, less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss if any. The cost of property, plant & equipment's comprises its
purchase price, borrowing cost and any other cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended

use. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow 

Depreciable amount for property, plant and equipment is the cost of property, plant and equipment less its estimated residual value.

Depreciation is provided on Straight Line Method over the estimated useful lives of the property, plant and equipment, except
Leasehold Improvements, prescribed under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 on pro rata basis. In cases, where the useful lives
are different from that prescribed in Schedule II, they are based on internal technical evaluation.

Leashold Improvements are amortized over the primary period of lease.

First time adoption of Ind AS

The Company has prepared the opening Balance Sheet as per Ind AS as of April 1, 2018 (the transition date) by recognising all assets

and liabilities whose recognition is required by Ind AS, not recognising items of assets and liabilities which are not permitted by Ind AS, 
by reclassifying items from IGAAP to Ind AS as required by Ind AS and applying Ind AS in measurement of recognised assets and
liabilities. However, this principle is subject to certain exceptions and certain optional exemptions availed by the Company given in 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Revenue Recognition

All other revenues are accounted on accrual basis.

Expenses

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable interest rate.
Interest income is included under the head “other income” in the statement of profit and loss.

Interest on financial assets subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) is recognised at the contractual rate of 

Interest Income

Net gain on fair value changes
Financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) or fair value through other comprehensive

income (FVOCI), as applicable. The Company recognises gains/losses on fair value change of financial assets measured as FVTPL and
realised gains/losses on derecognition of financial asset measured at FVTPL and FVOCI.

All expenses are accounted for on accrual basis.

Measurement of fair values

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the 

The Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the financial instruments to be measured at fair values. The Company has
an established control framework with respect to measurement of fair values. The Company uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. The management regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs
and valuation adjustments. If third party information such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then the
management assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusions that such valuations meet the 

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as 
Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices)

or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair

value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant 



d)

e)

f)

i)

ii)

g)

h)

--

i)

ii)

iii)

Deferred tax is recognised on timing differences, being the differences between the taxable income and the accounting income that
originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods. Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates
and the tax laws enacted or substantially enacted as at the reporting date. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all timing

differences. Deferred tax assets in respect of unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward of losses are recognised only if there is
virtual certainty that there will be sufficient future taxable income available to realise such assets. Deferred tax assets are recognised
for timing differences of other items only to the extent that reasonable certainty exists that sufficient future taxable income will be

available against which these can be realised.  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if such items relate to taxes on income levied 

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, the financial assets are classified into three categories:
- Financial assets at amortised cost
- Financial assets at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

- Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) on the basis of its business model for managing the financial assets.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds and is measured with
reference to the effective interest rate applicable to the respective borrowing. Borrowing costs, allocated to qualifying assets,
pertaining to the period from commencement of activities relating to construction / development of the qualifying asset are capitalized

upto the time all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are complete. A qualifying asset is
an asset that necessarily requires a substantial period of time to get ready to its intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are 

Financial Instruments

Financial assets at amortised cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for
collecting contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method, less impairment, if any. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses

arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Depreciation

Depreciation on fixed assets (including investment property) except leasehold improvements is provided on straight line method in the
manner and rates prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation is charged on a pro-rata basis for assets 

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the primary period of lease.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Income Tax

Current Income Tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with Indian Income Tax Act,
1961.

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to financial asset of one entity and financial liability or equity instrument of 

Financial Assets

Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognized at fair value on initial recognition, except for trade receivables which are initially measured at

transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets, which are not at fair value
through profit or loss, are added to the fair value on initial recognition.

Subsequent measurement and classification

If the recoverable amount of asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of an asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable

amount, so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the 

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that the assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of impairment loss (if any).



iv)

v)

vi)

vii)

viii)

--

i)

ii)

iii)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective

Interest Rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
transactions costs. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Gains and losses are

recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognised.

The Company applies ‘Simplified Approach’ for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and

credit exposure:

- Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured at amortised cost e.g. loans, deposits and bank balance
- Trade receivables

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment 

Financial Liabilities

Classification

The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly 

Loans and Borrowings

Financial assets where no significant increase in credit risk has been observed are considered to be in ‘stage 1’ and for which a 12
month ECL is recognised. Financial assets that are considered to have significant increase in credit risk are considered to be in ‘stage 2’

and those which are in default or for which there is an objective evidence of impairment are considered to be in ‘stage 3’. Lifetime ECL 

At initial recognition, allowance (or provision in the case of loan commitments) is required for ECL towards default events that are

possible in the next 12 months, or less, where the remaining life is less than 12 months. In the event of a significant increase in credit
risk, allowance (or provision) is required for ECL towards all possible default events over the expected life of the financial instrument
(‘lifetime ECL’). Financial assets (and the related impairment loss allowances) are written off in full, when there is no realistic prospect 

Interest income is recognised by applying the EIR to the net amortised cost amount i.e. gross carrying amount less ECL allowance.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial asset at Fair Value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Interest income measured using the EIR method and impairment losses, if any are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On

derecognition, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to ‘other income’ in the Statement of 

Financial asset at Fair Value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

A financial asset which are not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL. Such financial assets are measured at
fair value with all changes in fair value, including interest income and dividend income if any, recognised as ‘other income’ in the 

Financial assets as Equity Investments

All equity instruments other than investment in subsidiaries and associate are initially measured at fair value; the Company may, on
initial recognition, irrevocably elect to measure the same either at FVOCI or FVTPL.

The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. A fair value change on an equity instrument is recognised as
other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the Company has elected to measure such instrument at FVOCI. Fair value
changes excluding dividends, on an equity instrument measured at FVOCI are recognised in OCI. Amounts recognised in OCI are not
subsequently reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Dividend income on the investments in equity instruments are 

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised (i.e.
removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when: 
- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of 

A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) if it is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value
movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI).



iv)

--

i)

j)

k) Cash and Cash Equivalents

l)

m) Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are
carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible Assets are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset are reviewed at least at
the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied in the asset are considerd to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes
in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible is recognised in the statement of profit and loss account.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and

the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Derecognition

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. The expense relating to a

provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be

confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be 

Contingent Assets are not recognised in the financial statements. Contingent Assets if any, are disclosed in the notes to the financial 

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders (after
deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. For the purpose of
calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average

number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at bank and on hand and short term deposits with an original maturity of
three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flow, cash

and cash equivalents consists of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are 

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the 

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting of Financial instruments

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value

hierarchy into Level I, Level II and Level III based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole.
For a detailed information on the fair value hierarchy, refer note no. 30.

For assets and liabilities that are fair valued in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether

transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,

characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received against sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the
asset or transfer the liability takes place in the accessible principal market or the most advantageous accessible market as applicable.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

The Company measures its qualifying financial instruments at fair value on each Balance Sheet date.



n) Employee Benefits

 i) 

 ii) 

 iii) 

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short term employee benefits.
Benefits such as salaries, wages, performance incentives etc. are recognised at actual amounts due in the period in which the employee
renders the related service. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits to be paid in exchange for employee services is
recognized as an expense as the related service is rendered by employees.

Defined Benefit Plan : The cost of providing benefit like gratuity is determined using the actuarial valuation using the projected unit

credit method carried out as at the balance sheet date. Actuarial gain or loss are recognised immediately in the Profit or Loss Account 

All expenses represented by current service cost, past service cost, if any, and net interest expense / (income) on the net defined
benefit liability / (asset) are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability /

(asset) comprising actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI).

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service or the
gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on
the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

Compensated absences : Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in
which the employee renders the related services are recognised as a liability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation at

the balance sheet date as determined by an independent actuary based on projected unit credit method. The discount rates used for
determining the present value of the obligation under other long term employment benefits plan, are based on the market yields on 

Short – term employee benefits

Post Employment Benefits

Other long term employment benefits



Ikab Securities & Investments Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of the Standalone Financial Statement as at 31st March 2020
(Currency: Indian Rupees)

6 Loans
(Considered good)

Particulars

At amortised 

cost

At fair value 

through 

Profit & loss

Total At 

amortised 

cost

At fair value 

through 

Profit & loss

Total At 

amortised 

cost

At fair value 

through 

Profit & loss

Total

Unsecured 
Loans repayble on demand 2,00,00,000   -                  2,00,00,000    10,78,615     -                   10,78,615    30,25,000     -                 30,25,000     
Interest recievable 6,54,100         -                  6,54,100          -                  -                   -                 12,26,831     -                 12,26,831     

2,06,54,100   -                  2,06,54,100    10,78,615     -                   10,78,615    42,51,831     -                 42,51,831     
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (41,30,820)     -                  (41,30,820)     (10,78,615)   -                   (10,78,615)   -                  -                 -                  

1,65,23,280   -                  1,65,23,280    -                  -                   -                 42,51,831     -                 42,51,831     
Other loans
Loans and advances to employees -                   -                  -                    -                  -                   -                 -                  -                 -                  

Total 1,65,23,280 -                 1,65,23,280 -                 -                  -                42,51,831   -                42,51,831   

i. Break-up of loans under 

Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

Gross Carrying amount 2,06,54,100   -                  -                    -                  -                   10,78,615    42,51,831     -                 -                  
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss 51,63,525      -                  -                    -                  -                   10,78,615    -                  -                 -                  
Net Carrying amount 1,54,90,575   -                  -                    -                  -                   -                 42,51,831     -                 -                  

As at 31st March 2020 As at 31st March 2019 As at 1st April 2018

As at 31st March 2020 As at 31st March 2019 As at 1st April 2018



Ikab Securities & Investments Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of the Standalone Financial Statement as at 31st March 2020
(Currency: Indian Rupees)

3 Cash and cash equivalents
As at As at As at

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019 1st April 2018

Balances with banks :
     - in current accounts 1,63,88,063                 17,10,583                      6,42,949                    
Cash on hand 37,418                           45,238                            22,304                        

Total 1,64,25,482               17,55,821                    6,65,253                   

4 Bank balance other than Cash and cash equivalents
As at As at As at

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019 1st April 2018

Fixed deposit with bank 1,06,30,513                 1,05,93,701                  88,00,000                  

Total 1,06,30,513               1,05,93,701                 88,00,000                

Note :

5 Receivables
Unsecured, considered good As at As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019 1st April 2018

Trade Receivables
     - Secured, Considered good -                                  -                                   -                              
     - Unsecured, Considered good -                                  -                                   -                              

-                                  -                                   -                              
Other Receivables
     - Advances 15,36,257                     98,375                            8,86,644                    

15,36,257                     98,375                            8,86,644                    

Total 15,36,257                   98,375                           8,86,644                   

Fixed deposits with bank have original maturity of 36 months.

ii. No trade receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other
person nor any trade or other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a
partner, a director or a member. Trade receivables are non interest bearing.

i. Impairment allowance recognised on trade and other receivables is ₹ Nil (Previous year: ₹ Nil).
Note : 
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7 Investments
As at As at As at

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019 1st April 2018

Trade Investment
Investment carried at fair value through profit & loss:
      - Shares & Securities

Investment in Equity shares (Quoted)
Asian Grant Ltd -                         -                                26,21,823                
Astron Paper & Board Mill -                         -                                1,37,92,000            
Avenue Supermart -                         1,24,95,850                -                            
Cochin Shipyard -                         19,11,839                   -                            
Credit Access Gram -                         15,03,300                   -                            
Fortis Health Ltd -                         -                                2,49,268                  
ICICI Securities Ltd -                         -                                54,60,000                
KPI Global -                         1,82,60,640                -                            
Liberty Shoes -                         -                                6,37,262                  
Oasis Tradelink Ltd -                         -                                26,88,000                
Prime Housing Finance Pvt. Ltd.(unlisted) -                         -                                56,40,000                
SBI Cards Payment Service 1,73,25,094         
Sandhar Techno (unlisted) -                         -                                40,28,820                
Texmaco Rail & Eng.Ltd -                         -                                12,51,750                

Vadilal 31,64,350             
Varroc Engine 8,70,900                      -                            

Bonds
Shriram City Union Finance -                         -                                30,97,787                

Investment in Equity shares (Unquoted)
The Catholic SYR -                         34,95,400                   -                            
Stuish Capital Services Pvt Ltd (Preferential Shares) -                         90,00,000                   90,00,000                

Investment in Mutual Fund (Quoted)
Birla Sunlife Mutual(Growth Direct) -                         72,80,468                   -                            
Birla Sunlife Mutual(Growth) -                         31,84,637                   -                            
Hdfc Overnight (Growth) 1,77,39,323         1,90,38,220                -                            
ICICI Balanced Advantage Fund -                         20,00,000                   26,39,299                
Reliance Liquid Fund Treasury -                         -                                2,93,12,131            

3,82,28,768         7,90,41,255                8,04,18,139            

Total 3,82,28,768       7,90,41,255              8,04,18,139          

As at As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019 1st April 2018
Aggregate value of quoted investments 3,82,28,768           6,65,45,855                 7,14,18,139              
Aggregate value of unquoted investments -                         1,24,95,400                90,00,000                
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 3,82,28,768         6,65,45,855                7,14,18,139            

8 Other financial assets 
(Considered good) As at As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019 1st April 2018

Security deposits (unsecured) 16,29,986             16,32,470                   20,32,470                
Interest on deposits with bank 7,78,236               4,05,426                      14,04,794                
Share application money -                         49,02,000                   -                            

Total 24,08,222           69,39,896                  34,37,264              

Note : 
i. Impairment allowance recognised on other financial assets is ₹ Nil (Previous year: ₹ Nil).
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9 Deferred tax assets (net)
As at As at As at

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019 1st April 2018

Deferred tax liability

-                                  -                         -                             

Gross deferred tax liability -                                 -                         -                             

Deferred tax asset

2,16,909                       2,02,128               3,08,364                   

Remeasurement of defined benefit plan 26,583                           67,947                  94,076                      
Gross deferred tax assets 2,43,492                      2,70,075              4,02,440                  

Net deferred tax (liability)/ asset 2,43,492                      2,70,075              4,02,440                  

Net deferred tax (liability)/ asset restricted to* 2,43,492                      2,70,075              4,02,440                  

10 Intangible assets 
Particulars Software Total
Cost 
At 1 April 2017 8,93,602               8,93,602                  
Additions -                         -                             
Disposals -                         -                             
At 31 March 2018 8,93,602              8,93,602                  
Additions -                         -                             
Disposals -                         -                             
At 31 March 2019 8,93,602              8,93,602                  
Additions 69,325                  69,325                     
Disposals -                         -                             
At 31 March 2020 9,62,927              9,62,927                  

Amortisation
At 1 April 2017 8,38,276               8,38,276                  
Charge for the year 2,136                     2,136                        
Disposals -                         -                             
At 31 March 2018 8,40,412              8,40,412                  
Charge for the year 2,135                     2,135                        
Disposals -                         -                             
At 31 March 2019 8,42,547              8,42,547                  
Charge for the year 3,451                     3,451                        
Disposals -                         -                             
At 31 March 2020 8,45,998              8,45,998                  

Net block
At 31 March 2018 53,191                 53,191                     

At 31 March 2019 51,056                 51,056                     

At 31 March 2020 1,16,930              1,16,930                  

Notes :

Particulars
Gross Carrying 

Amount

Accumulated 

Amortisation

Net Carrying 

Amount

Software 8,93,602                       8,38,276               14,746                      

Total 8,93,602                      8,38,276              14,746                     

Difference between book depreciation and depreciation as per
the Income tax Act, 1961

As at 1st April 2018

Difference between book depreciation and depreciation as per 

the Income tax Act, 1961

The Company has availed the deemed cost exemption in relation to Intangible Assets on the date of transition and hence the net
carrying amount has been considered as the gross carrying amount on that date. Refer below for the gross carrying amount and

the accumulated amortisation on 1st April 2016 under previous GAAP.
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11 Property, plant and equipment

Particulars  Computers 
 Furniture & 

Fixture 
 Office 

Equipment's 
 Motor Car Total

Cost 
At 1 April 2017 8,90,627                 13,89,777            4,13,699               30,59,192           57,53,295               
Additions -                           -                         1,28,092               -                        1,28,092                 
Disposals -                           -                         1,71,961               -                        1,71,961                 
At 31 March 2018 8,90,627               13,89,777          3,69,830             30,59,192         57,09,427             
Additions -                           -                         -                         -                        -                           
Disposals -                           -                         -                         -                        -                           
At 31 March 2019 8,90,627               13,89,777          3,69,830             30,59,192         57,09,427             
Additions -                           -                         64,900                  -                        64,900                   
Disposals -                           -                         -                         -                        -                           
At 31 March 2020 8,90,627               13,89,777          4,34,730             30,59,192         57,74,327             

-                           
Depreciation -                           
At 1 April 2017 8,31,623                 11,23,455            3,86,359               25,44,024           48,85,461               
Charge for the year 5,450                       65,068                  11,109                  3,62,208             4,43,835                 
Disposals -                           -                         1,63,364               -                        1,63,364                 
At 31 March 2018 8,37,073               11,88,523          2,34,104             29,06,232         51,65,932             
Charge for the year 3,641                       65,066                  24,729                  -                        93,436                    
Disposals -                           -                         -                         -                        -                           
At 31 March 2019 8,40,714               12,53,589          2,58,833             29,06,232         52,59,368             
Charge for the year 3,833                       65,186                  27,951                  -                        96,970                   
Disposals -                           -                         -                         -                        -                           
At 31 March 2020 8,44,547               13,18,775          2,86,784             29,06,232         53,56,338             

-                           
Net block -                           
At 31 March 2018 53,554                   2,01,254             1,35,726             1,52,961            5,43,495               
At 31 March 2019 49,913                   1,36,188             1,10,997             1,52,961            4,50,059.25         
At 31 March 2020 46,080                   71,002                 1,47,946             1,52,961            4,17,989               

Notes: 

i)

ii)

8,90,627               8,31,623             59,004                    
Furniture & fixture 13,89,777            11,23,455           2,66,322                 
Motor Car 30,59,192            25,44,024           5,15,169                 

4,13,699               3,86,359             27,340                    

57,53,295           48,85,461         8,67,835               

12 Other non-financial assets

As at As at As at
31st March 202031st March 2019 1st April 2018

1,11,114               1,32,184             38,86,948               

12,319                  14,101                 14,392                    

Total 1,23,433             1,46,285            39,01,340             

Computers

Office Equipment's

During the year ended 31st March 2020 and 31st March 2019, there is no impairment loss determined at each level of CGU. The
recoverable amount was based on value in use and was determined at the level of CGU.

The Company has availed the deemed cost exemption in relation to Property, Plant and Equipments on the date of transition and
hence the net carrying amount has been considered as the gross carrying amount on that date. Refer below for the gross carrying
amount and the accumulated depreciation on 1st April 2018 under previous GAAP.

Gross Carrying 
Amount

Accumulated 
Depreciation

Net Carrying 
AmountParticulars

As at 1st April 2018

Total

Advance tax and tax deducted at source 
(net of provision for taxation)
Prepaid expenses

Particulars
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13 Trade payables 
 As at  As at  As at 

31st March 2020 31st March 2019 1st April 2018

Due to micro and small enterprises -                          -                           -                      
       Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
       Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises -                          -                           -                      

        and small enterprises
-                          -                           -                      

Due to others
       Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises -                          -                           -                      
       Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 2,14,733                2,75,126                 1,77,213            
       and small enterprises

2,14,733                2,75,126                 1,77,213            

2,14,733               2,75,126               1,77,213          

As at As at As at
31st March 2020 31st March 2019 1st April 2018

(i) Principal amount remaining                                -                                  -                             -   
(ii) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid                                -                                  -                             -   
(iii)                                -                                  -                             -   

(iv)                                -                                  -                             -   

(v) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid                                -                                  -                             -   
(vi)                                -                                  -                             -   

Total                               -                                  -                             -   

14 Provisions 
 As at  As at  As at 

31st March 2020 31st March 2019 1st April 2018

Provision for gratuity & others 18,81,670              -                           -                      
Provision for tax -                          1,71,130                 37,14,386         

18,81,670            1,71,130               37,14,386       

15 Other non-financial liabilities
 As at  As at  As at 

31st March 2020 31st March 2019 1st April 2018

Statutory dues payable
Tax deducted at source 5,72,354                27,787                    18,933               
GST Payable -                      
Provident fund 9,743                      20,978                    43,628               
Professional tax 200                         (200)                        300                     

5,82,297               48,565                   62,861              

Particulars

Particulars

Total

Particulars

Particulars

Total

Total

Interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, 
until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to 
the small enterprise.

Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making 
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day 
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under 

Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of Micro, 
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ('MSMED 
Act, 2006') along with the amount of payment made to the 
supplier beyond the appointed day during the period.

The amount due to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2006” has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of data collected by the
Management. This has been relied upon by the auditors. The disclosure relating to Micro and Small Enterprises is as under:
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16  Equity Share Capital 
As at As at As at

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019 1st April 2018

Authorised
5,00,00,000           5,00,00,000           5,00,00,000         

Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up
3,41,64,000           3,41,64,000           3,41,64,000         

3,41,64,000         3,41,64,000         3,41,64,000       

(i) Reconciliation of number of Equity shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:

Equity Shares
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount

At the comencement of the year 34,16,400        3,41,64,000       34,16,400        3,41,64,000           34,16,400               3,41,64,000         
Issued during the year -                         -                            -                         -                                 -                                 -                              
Outstanding at the end of the year 34,16,400      3,41,64,000     34,16,400      3,41,64,000         34,16,400             3,41,64,000       

(ii) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares:

(iii) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% Shares in the Company:

Name of shareholder  No. of shares  % of Holding   No. of shares  % of Holding   No. of shares  % of Holding  
Equity shares of Rs 10 each, fully paid-
up are held by
    Indra Kumar Bagri 10,91,178        31.94% 10,91,178        31.94% 10,91,178               31.94%
    Anil Kumar Bagri 7,26,790          21.27% 7,26,790          21.27% 7,26,790                 21.27%
    Abhishek Bagri 2,24,595          6.57% 2,24,595          6.57% 2,24,595                 6.57%
  Amit Kumar Bagri             1,85,000 5.42%             1,85,000 5.42%                    1,85,000 5.42%

17 Other Equity
As at As at As at

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019 1st April 2018

(Deficit) Profit and loss balance
At the commencement of the year 4,40,05,184           4,45,58,619           3,62,14,279         
Profit / Loss for the year (1,48,76,036)          (4,59,363)                90,35,911            
IND AS transition adjustment
        - On loans -                            -                            10,21,535            
        - On remeasurement of defined benefit plan 1,77,715                 3,76,303               
Transfer to Statutory Reserves under RBI Act (45 IC) -                            -                            (18,07,182)          
Items recognised directly in retained earnings
        - On defined benefit plan -                            (2,71,787)                (3,76,303)             
        - deferred tax on above -                            -                            94,076                  

2,91,29,148         4,40,05,184         4,45,58,619       

Capital Reserve
At the commencement of the year 1,68,000                 1,68,000                 1,68,000               
IND AS transition adjustment -                            -                            -                         

1,68,000                1,68,000                1,68,000             

Statutory Reserve under RBI Act
At the commencement of the year 2,05,14,517           2,05,14,517           1,87,07,335         
Transfer from retained earnings -                            -                            18,07,182            

2,05,14,517         2,05,14,517         2,05,14,517       

4,98,11,665         6,46,87,701         6,52,41,136       

50,00,000 Equity shares of Rs 10 each (Previous Year 31st March 2019 : 50,00,000
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each; 1st April 2018 : 50,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each)

34,16,400 Equity shares of Rs 10 each (Previous Year 31st March 2019 : 34,16,400

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each; 1st April 2018 : 34,16,400 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each)

 As at 31st March 2020  As at 31st March 2019  As at 1st April 2018 

The Company has one class of equity shares having par value of Rs.10 per share. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends
and share in the Company's residual assets. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time. The voting rights of an
equity shareholder on a poll are in proportion to his share of the paid-up equity capital of the Company. Voting rights cannot be excercised in

respect of shares on which any call or other sums presently payable have not been paid.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of the equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion of the shares held by each shareholder.

Total

Total

As at 31st March 2020 As at 31st March 2019 As at 1st April 2018

Total

Total
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18 Interest Income 
 For year ended  For year ended 

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019

On financial assets measured at amortised cost:
      - on loans 17,74,164                                 8,35,125                                    

Total 17,74,164                               8,35,125                                   

19 Net gain on fair value changes
 For year ended  For year ended 

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019

Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments measured at fair value through 
      - On trading portfolio:
            Realised gain/(loss) on debt instruments at FVTPL 1,94,68,078                             1,14,64,306                              
            Unrealised gain/(loss) on debt instruments at FVTPL (62,50,843)                               (8,52,827)                                  

Total 1,32,17,235                            1,06,11,479                            

20 Other income
 For year ended  For year ended 

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019

Dividend Income 69,089                                       -                                               
Interest income bank deposit 7,01,463                                    10,25,880                                 
Other miscellaneous income 190                                             6,192                                          

Total 7,70,742                                  10,32,072                                

21 Finance costs
For year ended For year ended

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019

On financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:
- On Borrowings 2,05,29,859                             50,89,504                                 

Total 2,05,29,859                            50,89,504                                

22 Impairment of financial instruments
For year ended For year ended

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019

On financial assets measured at amortised cost:
- On loans 41,30,820                                 10,78,615                                 
- On others -                                              -                                               

Total 41,30,820                               10,78,615                                

23 Employee benefits expense
For year ended For year ended

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019

Salaries, wages and bonus 16,89,067                                 29,46,570                                 
Contribution to provident and other funds 19,00,676                                 3,53,135                                    
Staff welfare expenses 2,735                                          6,529                                          
Director's sitting fees 63,000                                       45,000                                        

Total 36,55,479                               33,51,234                                

24 Depreciation and amortisation
For year ended For year ended

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019

Depreciation of tangible assets 96,970                                       93,436                                        
Amortisation of intangible assets 3,451                                          2,135                                          

Total 1,00,421                                  95,571                                      
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25 Other expenses
For year ended For year ended

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019

Advertisement expenses 1,24,488                                    1,26,090                                    
Bank charges 3,660                                          1,461                                          
Business development expenses 1,69,607                                    4,42,583                                    
Communication costs 1,08,651                                    1,44,286                                    
Donations 21,000                                       -                                               
Depository Charges 34,558                                       14,319                                        
Electricity expenses 63,272                                       56,743                                        
Legal and professional fees 7,77,756                                    10,76,187                                 
Membership & Subscription 41,264                                       44,846                                        
Miscellaneous expenses 5,279                                          23,986                                        
Payment to auditors' (refer note below) 60,000                                       80,000                                        
Postage & Courier 26,111                                       68,514                                        
Printing and stationery 63,457                                       68,599                                        
Rates & taxes 1,47,363                                    2,18,007                                    
Repairs and maintenance 1,82,596                                    2,03,759                                    
Travelling and conveyance 1,98,447                                    3,20,641                                    
 
Total 20,27,510                               28,90,022                                

Note: Payments to auditor's
Statutory audit 60,000                                       60,000                                        
Tax Audit -                                              10,000                                        
Certification fees -                                              -                                               
Other services -                                              10,000                                        

60,000                                      80,000                                      
Add: GST on above -                                              -                                               

Total 60,000                                      80,000                                      
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26 Earnings per share
 For year ended  For year ended 

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
A (1,47,48,449)             (5,65,130)                  

Calculation of weighted average number of shares
Number of equity shares at the beginning of the year 34,16,400                  34,16,400                 
Equity shares bought back during the year -                               -                              
Number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 34,16,400                  34,16,400                 
Weighted average number of equity shares B 34,16,400                  34,16,400                 
Basic and diluted earning per share A / B (4.32)                          (0.17)                          

27

28 Related party disclosures

(a) Related parties
Name of party Nature of relationship
Associate Company

(b)
Indra Kumar Bagri Director
Anil Kumar Bagri Managing Director
Abhishek Bagri Whole time Director
Prerit Damani Director
Swati Dujari Director
Library of Nuts Relative of director

(c) Related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year
Associate Company

(d)

For year ended For year ended
Name of the Company 31st March 2020 31st March 2019

Indra Kumar Bagri 18,000                        18,000                       
Prerit Damani 15,000                        15,000                       
Anil Kumar Bagri 18,000                        3,000                          
Swati Dujari 12,000                        9,000                          
Swati Dujari 2,500                          2,500                          
Prerit Damani 2,500                          2,500                          

Purchase of material Library of Nuts -                               24,520                       
Salary & allowance Abhishek Bagri 7,80,000                    6,50,000                    
Salary & allowance Anil Kumar Bagri -                               9,58,274                    

(e) Note:

29

(Loss) after tax attributable to equity share holders

Segment reporting

The Company operates in a single reportable segment i.e. Fund based activities including investment activities (Investment in
securities and property) and financing activity, since the nature of the fund based activities are exposed to similar risk and return

profiles hence they are collectively operating under a single segment. The Company operates in a single geographical segment i.e.
domestic. Hence, the financial statements are reflective of the information required by Ind AS 108 on “Operating Segments”, as 

Oasis Securities Limited

The related party disclosures made in the financial statements are as per the requirements of Ind AS 24 on “Related Party

Disclosures”, as prescribed in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS)) Rules 2015 and the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

Management believes that the liabilities/ penalties/ levies, if any, on account of the above stated non-compliance are not expected

to be material and the same are currently not determinable. Hence, no provision for any consequential liability has been made in 

During the year, the Company has identified that it has inadvertently not complied with certain provisions of Companies Act, 2013 
as set out below :

Key managerial personnel

Internal auditor as required under Section 138 of the Act was not appointed by the Company.

-

Significant transactions with related parties
The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties for the relevant 

Nature of transaction

Compliance with certain requirements of the Companies Act, 2013

Board sitting fees
Board sitting fees
Board sitting fees
Board sitting fees
Profession tax
Profession tax
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30 Assets and liabilities relating to employee benefits

a)

i) Provisions in Balance Sheet

As at As at As at
31st March 2020 31st March 2019 1st April 2018

Short Term liability -                                -                                   -                                  
Long Term liability 4,60,154                     2,71,787                         3,76,303                       

Total 4,60,154                    2,71,787                       3,76,303                     

ii) Recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

For year ended For year ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019

Expenses
        - Current Service Cost 39,635                            76,156                           
        - Net Interest Cost 21,145                            29,615                           

Total 60,780                           1,05,771                     

iii) Recognised in Statement of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

For year ended For year ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligation For the Period 1,27,587                         (2,10,287)                     

Total 1,27,587                       (2,10,287)                   

b)

i) On normal retirement / early retirement / resignation

ii) On death in service:

As at As at As at
31st March 2020 31st March 2019 1st April 2018

I

Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the beginning of the year 2,71,787                     3,76,303                         -                                  
Interest Cost 21,145                         29,615                            -                                  
Current Service Cost 39,635                         76,156                            -                                  
Past Service Cost -                                -                                   -                                  
Benefits paid from the Fund -                                -                                   -                                  
Actuarial (Gains) / Losses on Obligations 1,27,587                     (2,10,287)                       -                                  
Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the end of the year 4,60,154                    2,71,787                       3,76,303                     

II

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year -                                -                                   -                                  
Interest Income -                                -                                   -                                  
Contributions by the Employer -                                -                                   -                                  
Benefits paid from the Fund -                                -                                   -                                  
Return on Plan Assets, excluding Interest Income -                                -                                   -                                  
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year -                               -                                  -                                 

Other long term employment benefits

The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the Grauity Act, an employee who has completed five years of service is entitled
to specific benefits. The level of benefits provided depends on the member's length of service, managerial grade and salary at retirement age

The compensated absences liability and amount charged to Statement of Profit and Loss and other comprehensive income determined on actuarial
valuation using basis projected unit credit method are as under:

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

Change in the Present Value of Projected Benefit Obligation

Change in the Fair Value of Plan Assets

Particulars

The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and present value of defined benefit obligation of gratuity was carried out as at 31st March 2018. The
present value of defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and past service cost were measured using the Projected Unit Credit
Method. The following table summaries the net benefit expense recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss, the details of the defined benefit obligation and
the funded status of the Company’s gratuity plan:

Defined Benefit Plan

The Company makes contributions to the Group Gratuity cum Life Assurance Schemes administered by the Life Insurance Corporation of India, a funded
defined benefit plan for qualifying employees. The Scheme provides for payment as under:

As per the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 with vesting period of 5 years of service.

As per the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 without any vesting period.
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III

Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year (4,60,154)                    (2,71,787)                       (3,76,303)                     
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year -                                -                                   -                                  
Net Asset / (Liability) at the end of the year (4,60,154)                  (2,71,787)                     (3,76,303)                   

IV

Current Service Cost 39,635                         76,156                            -                                  
Net Interest Cost 21,145                         29,615                            -                                  
Past Service Cost -                                -                                   -                                  
Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 60,780                       1,05,771                       -                                 

V

Actuarial (Gains) / Losses on Obligation for the year 1,27,587                     (2,10,287)                       -                                  
Return on Plan Assets, excluding Interest Income -                                -                                   -                                  
Net (Income) / Expenses recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) 1,27,587                    (2,10,287)                     -                                 

VI
Discount rate 7.78% 7.87%
Salary escalation rate 5.00% 5.00%
Attriation Rates 2.00% 2.00%
Mortality Table

Year 1 12,930                         8,629                               -                                  
Year 2 13,396                         9,407                               -                                  
Year 3 13,894                         9,744                               -                                  
Year 4 15,252                         10,104                            -                                  
Year 5 15,848                         10,875                            -                                  
Year 6-10 89,818                         61,399                            -                                  
Year 11 and above 14,49,163                   10,49,311                      -                                  

VII

Projected Benefit Obligation on Current Assumptions 4,60,154                     2,71,787                         3,76,303                       
1% increase in Discount Rate (65,403)                       (37,716)                          -                                  
1% decrease in Discount Rate 80,553                         46,547                            -                                  
1% increase in Salary Escalation Rate 81,245                         47,417                            -                                  
1% decrease in Salary Escalation Rate (66,997)                       (38,945)                          -                                  
1% increase in Rate of Employee Turnover 15,150                         15,035                            -                                  
1% decrease in Rate of Employee Turnover (17,652)                       (17,515)                          -                                  

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

* Comparative figures for maturity profile of benefit payments is not availabe

* Comparative figures for sensitivity analysis of benefit payments is not availabe

Maturity profile of Benefit Payments

Net Asset / (Liability) recognised in Balance Sheet

Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Expenses recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Actuarial assumptions considered

The assumptions of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation take into
account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors.

Indian Assured Lives 
Mortality (2006-08) 

Ult

Indian Assured Lives 
Mortality (2006-08) 

Ult

Maturity Analysis of benefit payments is undiscounted cash flows considering future
salary, attrition and death in respective year for members as mentioned above.

Sensitivity Analysis of Projected Benefit Obligation for Significant Assumptions

The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes in the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting

year, holding all other variables constant. The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the Projected Benefit
Obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the Projected Benefit Obligation has been calculated using the projected unit
credit method at the end of the reporting year, which is the same method as applied in calculating the projected benefit obligation as recognised in the
Balance Sheet.
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a)

31st March 2020 Fair Value 
Through Profit 

and Loss

 Amortised
Cost 

Total  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3 Total

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents -                       1,64,25,482      1,64,25,482   -                         -                         -                         -                      

 Bank balance other than Cash 
and cash equivalents 

-                       1,06,30,513      1,06,30,513   -                         -                         -                         -                      

Recievables
Trade recievable -                       -                      -                     -                         -                         -                         -                      
Other recievable -                       15,36,257         15,36,257      -                         -                         -                         -                      

Loans -                       1,65,23,280      1,65,23,280   -                         -                         -                         -                      
Investments

in mutual funds 1,77,39,323      -                      1,77,39,323   -                         1,77,39,323        -                         1,77,39,323    
in equity shares 2,04,89,445      -                      2,04,89,445   2,04,89,445        -                         -                         2,04,89,445    

Other Financial Assets -                       24,08,222         24,08,222      -                         -                         -                         -                      
Total 3,82,28,768    4,75,23,754    8,57,52,522   2,04,89,445      1,77,39,323      -                        3,82,28,768    

Financial liabilities
Payables

Trade payables -                       -                      -                     -                         -                         -                         -                      
Other payables -                       2,14,733            2,14,733         -                         -                         -                         -                      

Total -                      2,14,733          2,14,733         -                        -                        -                        -                      

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents -                       17,55,821         17,55,821      -                         -                         -                         -                      

 Bank balance other than Cash 
and cash equivalents 

-                       1,05,93,701      1,05,93,701   -                         -                         -                         -                      

Recievables
Trade recievable -                       -                      -                     -                         -                         -                         -                      
Other recievable -                       98,375               98,375             -                         -                         -                         -                      

Loans -                       -                      -                     -                         -                         -                         -                      
Investments

in mutual funds 3,15,03,325      -                      3,15,03,325   -                         3,15,03,325        -                         3,15,03,325    
in equity shares 4,75,37,929      -                      4,75,37,929   3,50,42,529        -                         1,24,95,400        4,75,37,929    

Other Financial Assets -                       69,39,896         69,39,896      -                         -                      

Total 7,90,41,255    1,93,87,793    9,84,29,047   3,50,42,529      3,15,03,325      1,24,95,400      7,90,41,255    
Financial liabilities

Payables
Trade payables -                       -                      -                     
Other payables -                       2,75,126            2,75,126         -                         -                      

Total -                      2,75,126          2,75,126         -                        -                        -                        -                      

Financial instruments – Fair values and risk management

Accounting classification and fair values

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy. It
does not include fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable
approximation of fair value.

Carrying amount/Fair Value Fair Value Hierarchy

Carrying amount/Fair Value Fair Value Hierarchy

Fair Value 
Through Profit 

and Loss

Amortised
Cost

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total31st March 2019
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Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents -                       6,65,253            6,65,253         -                         -                         -                         -                      

 Bank balance other than Cash 
and cash equivalents 

-                       88,00,000         88,00,000      -                         -                         -                         -                      

Recievables
Trade recievable -                       -                      -                     -                         -                         -                         -                      
Other recievable -                       8,86,644            8,86,644         -                         -                         -                         -                      

Loans -                       42,51,831         42,51,831      -                         -                         -                         -                      
Investments

in mutual funds 3,19,51,429      -                      3,19,51,429   -                         3,19,51,429        -                         3,19,51,429    
in equity shares 4,84,66,709      -                      4,84,66,709   3,94,66,709        -                         90,00,000           4,84,66,709    

Other Financial Assets -                       34,37,264         34,37,264      -                         -                         -                         -                      

Total 8,04,18,139    1,80,40,992    9,84,59,131   3,94,66,709      3,19,51,429      90,00,000          8,04,18,139    

Financial liabilities
Payables

Trade payables -                       -                      -                     
Other payables -                       1,77,213            1,77,213         -                         -                      

Total -                      1,77,213          1,77,213         -                        -                        -                        -                      

b)

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets and liabilities in an active markets.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices).

Level 3 - Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

c)

i)

ii)

iii)

d)

i) Credit risk

1st April 2018 Fair Value 
Through Profit 

and Loss

Amortised
Cost

The Management assesses that fair values of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, loans, trade payables, current borrowings,
other current liabilities and other financial liabilities (current), approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these
instruments.
The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost in the financial statements are a reasonable approximation of
their fair values since the Company does not anticipate that the carrying amount would be significantly different from the values that would eventually be
received or settled.
Risk Management Framework

The Company's business activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, namely credit risk, liquidity risk and market risks. Market risks comprise currency
risk and interest rate risk. The Company's Senior Management and Key Management Personnel have the ultimate responsibility for managing these risks.
The Management has a process to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and to control and to monitor risks and
adherence to these limits. Risk Management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and Company's activities.
Further, Audit Committee undertakes regular reviews of Risk Management Controls and Procedures.

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty fails to meet its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. The Company is
exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (trade & other receivables) and from its financing activities including investments in mutual funds,
deposits with banks and financial institutions and financial instruments. Credit risk has always been managed by the Company through credit approvals and
continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. On account of
adoption of Ind AS 109, the Company has adopted expected lifetime credit loss model to assess the impairment loss, and is positive of the realisibility of the
other trade receivables and other Financial Asset.

Level 3 Total

The fair value of financial instruments as referred to in note (a) above have been classified into three categories depending on the inputs used in the
valuation technique. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and
lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements).

The categories used are as follows:

Measurement of Fair Value

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair values are consistent in all the years.
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

Carrying amount/Fair Value Fair Value Hierarchy

Fair value hierarchy

Total Level 1 Level 2

The fair values of investments in mutual fund units is based on the net asset value (‘NAV’) as stated by the issuers of mutual funds. Net asset values
represent the price at which the issuer will issue further units in the mutual fund and the price at which issuers will redeem such units from the investors.
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Trade & other Receivables

As at As at As at
31st March 202031st March 2019 1st April 2018

Outstanding for less than one year -                         -                         -                       
Others 15,36,257           98,375                  8,86,644            

15,36,257          98,375                8,86,644           
Less: - Allowance for doubtful debts -                         -                         -                       

Total 15,36,257          98,375                8,86,644           

Investments in Mutual Funds and Bank Balances

ii) Liquidity risk

Total  Within 12  After 12 

-                         -                        -                         -                       
2,14,733              2,14,733            2,14,733              -                       

2,14,733            2,14,733            2,14,733            -                      

Total  Within 12  After 12 

-                         -                        -                         -                       
2,75,126              2,75,126            2,75,126              -                       

2,75,126            2,75,126            2,75,126            -                      

Total  Within 12  After 12 

-                         -                         -                         -                       
1,77,213              1,77,213            1,77,213              -                       

1,77,213            1,77,213            1,77,213            -                      

iii) Market risk

Currency risk

Interest rate risk

32

Credit risk from trade & other receivables is managed by establishing credit limits, credit approvals and monitoring creditworthiness of the customers.
Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. The Company has computed credit loss allowances based on Expected Credit Loss Model, which
excludes transactions with subsidiaries. The ageing of trade receivables is as follows:

Particulars

The Company’s objective is to maintain appropriate levels of capital to support its business strategy taking into account the regulatory, economic and
commercial environment. The Company aims to maintain a strong capital base to support the risks inherent to its business and growth strategies. The
Company endeavours to maintain a higher capital base than the mandated regulatory capital at all times.

31st March 2020

Payables
Trade payables
Other payables

Total

Fair Value Hierarchy

31st March 2019

The Company’s operations are only in India which results in no foregin currency risk exposure.

The company has no borrowings and investments in interest bearing instruments. Hence, company has no interest rate risk exposure.

Trade payables

Contractual maturities of Financial Liabilities as on 31st March 2018

Capital Management

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprises Currency Risk and Interest Risk. 

Other payables

Total

Payables

Fair Value Hierarchy

 Carrying 
amount 

 Carrying 
amount 

The Company’s exposure in balances with banks and investments in Mutual Funds is limited, as the counterparties are highly rated banks and financial 

Fair Value Hierarchy

1st April 2018  Carrying 
amount 

Other payables

Total

Payables
Trade payables

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will face in meeting its obligations associated with its financial liabilities. The Company’s approach to managing
liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient funds to meet its liabilities when due without incurring unacceptable losses.

The following tables detailed the Company’s remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at the reporting date with agreed repayment periods.
The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be
required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
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a)

b)

Exemption

i) Deemed cost

Exception

i) Estimates

ii) Classification and measurement of financial assets

Exemption and Exception availed

First time adoption of Ind AS

First Ind AS Financial statements:

These are the Company’s first financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS applicable as per Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 and
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time, for the year ended 31st March 2020.

The accounting policies set out in Note 2 have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2020, the
comparative information presented in these financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2019 and in the preparation of an opening Ind
AS balance sheet at 1st April 2018 (the date of transition). 
This note provides an explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the company’s financial position as on 1st
April 2018 and 31st March 2019 and financial performance for the year ended 31st March 2020. This note also explains exemption and exception 
availed by the company in transition from IGAAP to Ind AS.

Below are the applicable Ind AS 101 "First Time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards" optional exemption and mandatory exception applied
in the transition from Indian GAAP to Ind AS.

Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value measured as per the previous GAAP for all of its items of
property, plant and equipment, and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition after making necessary adjustments for de-
commissioning liabilities. This exemption can also be used for intangible assets. Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure all of its
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at their previous GAAP carrying value as its deemed cost on the date of transition.

The company’s estimates in Ind ASs at the date of transition, are required to be consistent with estimates made for the same date in previous
GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies), unless there is objective evidence that those estimates were in error.
Ind AS estimates as at 1st April 2018 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made in conformity with previous GAAP except where 

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification and measurement of financial assets as per Ind AS 109 on the basis of the facts and
circumstances that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS.
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c)

i) Reconciliation of equity as at 31st March 2019 and 1st April 2018

ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 17,55,821             -                        17,55,821              6,65,253                   -                        6,65,253                 
Bank balance other than Cash 
and cash equivalents

1,05,93,701          -                        1,05,93,701          88,00,000                -                        88,00,000              

Recievables -                        
Trade recievable -                          -                        -                           -                             -                        -                           
Other recievable 98,375                   -                        98,375                    8,86,644                   -                        8,86,644                 
Loans 66,80,754             66,80,754           -                           89,58,810                47,06,979           42,51,831              
Inventories 7,83,37,062          7,83,37,062        -                           7,93,96,604             7,93,96,604        -                           
Investments -                          (7,90,41,255)      7,90,41,255          -                             (8,04,18,139)      8,04,18,139           
Other non current Assets 4,05,426                4,05,426              -                           26,31,625                26,31,625           -                           
Other Financial Assets -                          (69,39,896)         69,39,896              -                             (34,37,264)         34,37,264              
Total financial assets (A) 9,78,71,139        (5,57,908)          9,84,29,047        10,13,38,935       28,79,805         9,84,59,131        

Non-financial assets
Deferred tax assets (net) 2,70,075                0                            2,70,075                3,08,364                   (94,076)               4,02,440                 
Property, plant and 4,50,059                -                        4,50,059                5,43,495                   -                        5,43,495                 
Intangible assets 51,056                   -                        51,056                    53,191                      -                        53,191                    
Other non-financial assets -                          (1,46,285)            1,46,285                -                             (39,01,340)         39,01,340              
Total non-financial assets 7,71,190              (1,46,285)          9,17,475              9,05,050                 (39,95,416)       49,00,466            

Total Assets (A+B) 9,86,42,329        (7,04,193)          9,93,46,522        10,22,43,985       (11,15,611)       10,33,59,596      

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Payables
       Trade payables -                        -                           -                        -                           
       Other payables -                          (2,75,126)            2,75,126                -                             (1,77,213)            1,77,213                 
Total financial liabilities (A) -                          (2,75,126)          2,75,126              -                            (1,77,213)          1,77,213               

Non-financial liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities (net) -                          -                        -                           -                             -                        -                           
Provisions -                          (1,71,130)            1,71,130                -                             (37,14,386)         37,14,386              
Other non-financial liabilities -                          (48,565)               48,565                    -                             (62,861)               62,861                    
Other current liabilities 4,94,821                4,94,821              -                           39,54,460                39,54,460           -                           
Total non-financial 
liabilities (B)

4,94,821              2,75,126            2,19,695              39,54,460              1,77,213            37,77,247            

Equity 
Equity Share Capital 3,41,64,000          -                        3,41,64,000          3,41,64,000             -                        3,41,64,000           
Other equity 6,39,83,508          (7,04,193)            6,46,87,701          6,41,25,525             (11,15,611)         6,52,41,136           
Total equity (C) 9,81,47,508        (7,04,193)          9,88,51,701        9,82,89,525          (11,15,611)       9,94,05,136        

Total equity and liabilities 
(A+B+C)

9,86,42,329        (7,04,193)          9,93,46,522        10,22,43,985       (11,15,611)       10,33,59,596      

Reconciliation of Equity, Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash flow

As the presentation requirements under IGAAP differ from Ind AS, the IGAAP information has been regrouped for ease and facilitation of 

Adjustment
on transition

to Ind AS

As at
1st April 2018

(Ind AS)

Adjustment
on transition

to Ind AS

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2019 
(IGAAP)

As at
31st March 2019

(Ind AS)

As at 
31st March 2018 

(IGAAP)
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ii) Reconciliation of statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2019

Revenue from operations
Revenue from operations             89,52,18,990 89,52,18,990                                     -   
Interest Income                                   -   (8,35,125)                              8,35,125 
Net gain on fair value changes                                   -   (1,06,11,479)                  1,06,11,479 
Total revenue from operations             89,52,18,990       88,37,72,387             1,14,46,604 
Other income                   18,67,197 8,35,125                              10,32,072 
Total Income          89,70,86,188     88,46,07,512           1,24,78,676 

Expenses
Purchase of stock in trade             88,28,82,039 88,28,82,039                                     -   
Changes in inventories of stock in trade                   10,59,543 10,59,543                                           -   
Finance costs                   50,90,965 1,461                                    50,89,504 
Impairment on financial instruments                   10,78,615 -                                        10,78,615 
Employee benefits expenses                   32,00,463 (1,50,771)                            33,51,234 
Depreciation and amortisation                         95,571 -                                              95,571 
Other expenses                   32,82,149 3,92,127                              28,90,022 
Total expenses          89,66,89,345     88,41,84,399           1,25,04,946 

Profit/(Loss) before tax                   3,96,843              4,23,113                   (26,270)

Tax expense
- Current tax                     1,71,130 -                                          1,71,130 
- Tax expense relating to prior years                     3,29,441 -                                          3,29,441 
- Deferred tax                         38,289 -                                              38,289 
Total tax expense                   5,38,860                             -                    5,38,860 

Profit/(Loss) for the year                 (1,42,017)              4,23,113               (5,65,130)

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans                                   -   (2,10,287)                              2,10,287 
Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss                                   -   52,572                                    (52,572)
Deferred Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss                                   -   51,948                                    (51,948)
Total other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year                                   -                (1,05,767)                   1,05,767 

Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year                 (1,42,017)              3,17,346               (4,59,363)

Earnings per equity share 
- Basic and diluted                           (0.35) (0.18)                                            (0.17)

As the presentation requirements under IGAAP differ from Ind AS, the IGAAP information has been regrouped for ease and facilitation of 

 For the Year
Ended 31st 

March
2019

Particulars

 For the Year
Ended 31st March

2019
(IGAAP) 

 Adjustment
on transition

to Ind AS 
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iii) Reconciliation of cash flows for the year ended 31st March 2019

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit/ (loss) before tax                     3,96,843 4,23,113                                 (26,270)
Adjustments for:

Depreciation Expense                         95,571 -                                              95,571 
Finance Costs                   50,90,965 1,461                                    50,89,504 
Interest Income                (18,67,197) (6,192)                               (18,61,005)
Impairment on financial instruments                   10,78,615 -                                        10,78,615 

                                  -   1,06,11,479                  (1,06,11,479)
                47,94,796        1,10,29,860            (62,35,064)

Cash inflow from interest on loans                   18,67,197 6,192                                    18,61,005 
Cash outflow towards finance cost                (50,90,965) (1,461)                               (50,89,504)

Cash generated from operation before working capital changes 15,71,029              1,10,34,592                (94,63,563)

Changes in operating assets and liabilities
(Increase)/ decrease in other receivables                     7,88,269 -                                          7,88,269 
(Increase)/ decrease in loans                   11,99,441 (19,73,775)                         31,73,216 
(Increase)/ decrease in other Financial Assets                                   -   35,02,632                        (35,02,632)
(Increase)/ decrease in other non financial Assets                               291 -                                                    291 
Increase in other payables                         97,913 -                                              97,913 
Increase in provisions                (35,43,256) (1,05,771)                         (34,37,485)
Increase in other non financial liabilities                      (14,296) -                                           (14,296)

Cash generated from operations                 16,70,419        1,24,57,677        (1,23,58,287)
Tax Expenses / Deferred Tax                   32,54,193 -                                        32,54,193 
Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities              (A)                 49,24,612        1,24,57,677            (91,04,094)

Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment                                   -   -                                                        -   
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment                                   -   -                                                        -   
Purchase of investments measured at FVTPL          (88,32,30,627) 0                                   (88,32,30,627)
Proceeds from sale of investments measured at FVTPL             89,52,18,990 (0)                                    89,52,18,990 
Interest received on investments measured at FVTPL                                   -   -                                                        -   

Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities              (B)                                  -                             (0)           1,19,88,363 

Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of shares                                   -   -                                                        -   
Proceeds from Other Equity                                   -   -                                                        -   
Proceeds from Borrowings         3,20,70,00,174 -                              3,20,70,00,174 
Repayment of borrowings       (3,20,70,00,174) -                            (3,20,70,00,174)

Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities              (C)                                  -                               -                                   -   

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents     (A+B+C)                 49,24,612        1,24,57,677               28,84,269 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year                   94,65,253 -                                        94,65,253 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year             1,23,49,522 -                                  1,23,49,522 
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents                 28,84,269                             -                 28,84,269 

 For the Year
Ended 31st March

2019
(IGAAP) 

As the presentation requirements under IGAAP differ from Ind AS, the IGAAP information has been regrouped for ease and facilitation of 

 Adjustment
on transition

to Ind AS 

 For the Year
Ended 31st 

March
2019

 Particulars 

Net (gain)/loss on financial instruments at fair value through 



Ikab Securities & Investments Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of the Standalone Financial Statement as at 31st March 2020
(Currency: Indian Rupees)

iv) Notes to the Reconciliations:

A Discounting of Financial Assets

B Impairment of Receivables & loans

C Impact on Cash Flow

D Deferred Taxes on Ind AS adjustments

E Allowance for Expected Credit Loss

34 Other matters

Information with regard to other matters specified Schedule III of the Act, is either nil or not applicable to the Company for the year.

35 Previous years’ figures have been regrouped / restated wherever necessary to conform to current year’s classification

The notes refered to above form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For M/s A. V. Arolkar & Co.; For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 100542W)

 
sd/- sd/-
Indra Kumar Bagri Abhishek Bagri
Chairman Whole Time Director

sd/-
Abhay Vasant Arolkar
Partner sd/- sd/-
Membership No: 032453 Devang Dani Ankita Phophaliya

Chief financial officer Company Secretary
Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : 31/07/2020 Date : 31/07/2020

Under previous GAAP, the Company had created allowance for financial assets based on incurred loss model. Under Ind AS, impairment
allowance has been calculated based on expected credit loss model. As a result, provision for expected credit loss of Rs. 2,206.92 lakhs has been 

Under IGAAP, the Company has created provision for impairment of receivables based on provision matrix. Under Ind AS, the impairment
allowance has been determined based on Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model.

The transition from Previous GAAP to Ind AS has no material impact on the statement of cash flow except bank overdraft which has been 

IGAAP requires deferred tax accounting using the income statement approach, which focuses on differences between taxable profits and
accounting profits for the period. Ind AS 12 requires entities to account for deferred taxes using the balance sheet approach, which focuses on
temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the balance sheet and its tax base. The application of the balance
sheet approach has resulted in recognition of deferred tax on new temporary differences which was not required under IGAAP. In addition, 

Classification and measurement of Financial asset Fair valued through P&L
Under Indian GAAP, Company accounted for its long term investment in Mutual fund and Venture Capital Fund securities measured at cost less
provision for other than temporary diminution in the value of investments. Under Ind AS the company has classified these investment as FVPL as
per conditions prescribed in para 4.1.2 (B) of Ind AS 109. At the date of transition to Ind AS, the difference between the instruments’ fair value 
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